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          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND IMMIGRATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: The General

          3  Welfare Committee and the Subcommittee on the

          4  Immigration Issues is called to order.

          5                 I apologize for the delay today. We

          6  were just dealing with a few issues before the

          7  meeting started. I apologize for my voice. I'm in

          8  the middle of a cold so I hope it sounds dramatic

          9  and raspy, but you may not be able to understand me.

         10                 I'd like to ask everyone, if you

         11  haven't already turned off your cell phones, please

         12  do. I know we have a number of witnesses already

         13  signed up. This is the last opportunity for anybody

         14  who has not yet signed up to sign up. Please see the

         15  Sergeant at Arms. Please wave, Sergeant. So if you

         16  have not yet signed up this is your last chance.

         17                 I want to thank my colleagues. Let me

         18  just introduce my colleagues here today; Helen

         19  Sears, Kendall Stewart, Eric Gioia, John Liu (I know

         20  Chris Quinn was here a moment ago). I want to thank

         21  all of them for participating in this very important

         22  hearing.

         23                 I want to give credit where credit is

         24  due, in particular to Helen Sears, who introduced a

         25  very helpful resolution a few weeks back, to look at
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          2  the situation of day laborers in an important new

          3  way and to foster a debate, which we really haven't

          4  had in our City. I want to thank her very much for

          5  introducing that resolution.

          6                 I also want to thank Kendall Stewart

          7  for his work as a Subcommittee Chair. He's done some

          8  very vibrant work and has been a wonderful advocate

          9  for all immigrants. So thanks to both of you.

         10                 Today we are doing something unique.

         11  Not only are we looking at an issue, which I think

         12  has gotten far too little attention, but we're also

         13  trying to really bring all perspectives to the table

         14  to start what hopefully, will be an ongoing debate.

         15  This is one of those issues which all of us who care

         16  about justice and fair government policy have to

         17  grapple with because it concerns very legitimate

         18  needs and issues on all sides of the spectrum.

         19                 Today you'll hear a number of very

         20  compelling stories and reports on what day laborers

         21  are experiencing and what our immigrants are going

         22  through and how, in many ways, they're being

         23  exploited and taken advantage of in a very, very

         24  unfair manner.

         25                 You'll also hear concerns raised by
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          2  residential neighborhoods which are equally valid

          3  about the fact that we have not come up with a

          4  coherent policy for how to best work with day

          5  laborers while respecting the needs of communities,

          6  particularly our commercial areas, to be positive

          7  and an open environment where commerce can be done

          8  and to not create a dynamic where laborers and

          9  merchants or laborers and neighborhood residents are

         10  pitted against each other. I've, in my own

         11  neighborhood, have had a number of concerns raised.

         12  I've worked with community leaders and with the

         13  police to try and find an appropriate solution is a

         14  very difficult and complex issue including the fact

         15  that there are real First Amendment considerations.

         16  What we hope to focus on today, in addition to

         17  hearing the valid concerns on all sides, is

         18  listening to some promising new possible solutions

         19  that would really focus on the practical needs to

         20  help all laborers connect themselves to the

         21  appropriate work opportunities without being

         22  exploited in the process while simultaneously

         23  creating some more structure in the process which

         24  could be helpful to our neighborhoods. That's the

         25  kind of balance that we're looking at today, always
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          2  keeping in mind the health and safety of everyone

          3  concerned. Always keeping in mind the fact that

          4  employers, in many cases, have evaded the

          5  accountability that they should have taken

          6  responsibility for. That's something we hope to work

          7  on, not only today but on an ongoing basis.

          8                 One of the things I just want to

          9  note... I know you're going to hear a lot about job

         10  centers, which we are very hopeful about because

         11  they bring a positive structure to the situation. I

         12  think they can be helpful to all involved and much

         13  more productive than the informal arrangements that

         14  exist in most of our neighborhoods. That's something

         15  we're very excited about and we hope to hear more

         16  about. Before continuing, I'd like to turn to

         17  Kendall Stewart, the Subcommittee Chair and I'd also

         18  like to turn to Helen Sears for just some brief

         19  opening comments. Kendall...

         20                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you Mr.

         21  Chair. Good afternoon and welcome. As Chair of the

         22  Subcommittee on Immigration I am pleased to be

         23  holding this hearing today on the issues and

         24  concerns of immigrant day laborers in New York City.

         25  This is a very important topic affecting thousands
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          2  of New Yorkers directly and I feel that today's

          3  hearing is a step in the right direction towards

          4  addressing the complex issues surrounding the Day

          5  Laborer.

          6                 I want to thank you all who made the

          7  trip to City Hall today, both those who are here to

          8  testify and those who are here as members of the

          9  audience out of an interest in resolving some of the

         10  complex issues surrounding this topic. We want to

         11  get to the testimony as quickly as possible but

         12  first I would like to take a few minutes to

         13  acknowledge some of the concerns that we will be

         14  addressing in today's hearing.

         15                 Day laborers are primarily immigrants

         16  to this country. They have limited English speaking

         17  abilities, limited education and training and many

         18  lack documentation. In addition, they are in need of

         19  work to support their families both in this country

         20  and in their own country of origin. Day laborers

         21  offer a viable mode of employment for workers who

         22  are unable to find any other permanent jobs.

         23  Unfortunately this type of employment comes with

         24  certain risks. Many day laborers experience wage and

         25  hourly violations. It is not uncommon for the
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          2  employer to pay less than the agreed upon wage or to

          3  not pay the day laborer at all once the job is done.

          4                 Today we will here from one of many

          5  day laborers who has experienced wage and hour

          6  violations. Mr. Ramon Carreon works shifts from 6 am

          7  to 2 am for an air conditioning company and did not

          8  receive the overtime payments that were due him. The

          9  Council is also concerned about the health and

         10  safety of day laborers who often work in unsafe

         11  conditions. After the September 11th disaster, many

         12  day laborers were hired to clean up the areas around

         13  ground zero but were not provided the appropriate

         14  safety equipment, namely basic masks to protect

         15  their lungs from the debris in the air. Today we

         16  will hear from Dr. Markowitz, who worked at ground

         17  zero running a medical station for day laborers. We

         18  will also hear from Librado Velasquez, a former day

         19  laborer with seven children to support, who is here

         20  today to share his story about becoming permanently

         21  disabled after an accident working with machinery in

         22  New Jersey. He is currently in the process of trying

         23  to secure workmen's compensation.

         24                 Day laborers deserve to work in safe

         25  conditions and they deserve to be properly
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          2  compensated for their work. We are here today to

          3  investigate these concerns further and to attempt to

          4  identify means of insuring that day laborers are not

          5  placed at risk when going to work and that they

          6  receive proper, timely payment of the wages they

          7  earn. With that, Mr. Chair I pass it back to you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

          9  Council Member. Before we turn to Council Member

         10  Sears I want to welcome Council Member Mike McMahon

         11  and (I'm so delirious at this point, did I introduce

         12  you John?) I'm going to reintroduce John Liu because

         13  he is so special, he deserves two introductions.

         14  John Liu has joined us and Jose Serrano has joined

         15  us. Welcome all. Now the author of the resolution

         16  that led to this hearing, Helen Sears. Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.

         18  Chair. I really want to thank Councilman and

         19  Chairman DeBlasio and Councilman Kendall Stewart for

         20  arranging this and for Eric Gioia, the Councilman to

         21  be here as well. It's such an important issue and I

         22  can't thank you enough for really addressing it.

         23                 My comments are really very brief.

         24  New York City is a city of immigrants without whose

         25  work force we would be poorer in many respects. One
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          2  form of labor and one form that has been in our city

          3  for a long time is the use of immigrant day laborers

          4  for one day work on construction sites, contracting

          5  needs and any other type of physical labor. The

          6  laborer's day starts out very early. He waits for

          7  employers to come around in cars or vans and to

          8  start, what I call, the selection process If the

          9  worker is not chosen in the A.M. The laborer will

         10  remain in the area in anticipation of possible

         11  returns. Most of the time they are waiting there all

         12  day and into the evening. This has become a

         13  significant and sensitive quality of life issue.

         14                 While we cannot ignore the economic

         15  needs of those seeking employment, we also have the

         16  obligation to protect the local residents and

         17  business community who are faced with the reality of

         18  the situation while maintaining sensitivity to the

         19  men seeking work for themselves and their families.

         20                 Communities have expressed their

         21  ongoing concern and anxieties about a situation we

         22  witness as having overwhelming growth. There are

         23  communities that have found viable solutions to this

         24  problem. I believe that we, in the City Council,

         25  must examine the issue thoroughly to seek a plan
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          2  that would benefit everyone involved.

          3                 I also wish to make you aware that

          4  there are many unscrupulous employers who pay the

          5  workers far less than fair wages. These are laborers

          6  who are also cheated out of a well earned day's pay.

          7  These practices are not tolerable to our commitment

          8  to labor in general.

          9                 In the Fall, I held a meeting in my

         10  district office with day laborers, community boards,

         11  organizations who have a deep interest in this

         12  issue. I also held a Town Hall Meeting in which

         13  Councilman Gioia was present, attended by over 80

         14  workers, organizers with the day laborers, community

         15  representatives and other elected officials, where

         16  many issues were discussed. It was a good and open

         17  meeting where everyone was heard. A proposal was

         18  discussed relating to the opening of job centers

         19  similar to the one in Brooklyn.

         20                 I hope that today's hearing will

         21  continue the process that was started to assist all

         22  concerned parties in an attempt to alleviate the

         23  negative effects on good and decent people and

         24  instead accentuate the positive that will encompass

         25  harmony among all groups.
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          2                 In conclusion, I am well aware that

          3  day laborers have always had a place in the

          4  development of our dams, our reservoirs, the

          5  agricultural industry, the waterworks. This summer I

          6  was up outside of New Paul's (phonetic) and attended

          7  a museum and bought a book called Liquid Assets. Way

          8  back when, day laborers were used they were getting

          9  a dollar, a dollar and a quarter a day and 28

         10  dollars was spent for their room and board. Now you

         11  figure that math out... That hasn't changed very

         12  much. What I find staggering is that in this country

         13  where we have so much, we have done to date so

         14  little to advance the quality of life and self

         15  development for people who have come to find a

         16  better way of life. It is imperative that the

         17  federal, state and city work out to have, not an

         18  immediate solution because this is a long range

         19  problem, but we must start to diminish the effects

         20  of such an issue.

         21                 So I thank you again and I thank

         22  everyone for being here. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

         24  Council Member. Before we call up the first panel, I

         25  would like to call on one other colleague whose been
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          2  doing important work in this area, Council Member

          3  Eric Gioia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you Mr.

          5  Chair. Thank you very much for your leadership on

          6  this issue. Thank you as well to Council Member

          7  Stewart and particularly Councilwoman Sears, who has

          8  also shown great leadership on this issue.

          9                 This is truly an important economic,

         10  safety and quality of life issue. Our country and

         11  our city are really based on a simple promise and

         12  that's whoever you are, whatever you do, wherever

         13  you're from, whatever language you speak at home or

         14  whatever language you learned at first, however much

         15  money you have in the bank, if you come to this

         16  country and you work hard and you play by the rules

         17  you ought to be able to accomplish anything that you

         18  want. These gentleman who are here today are willing

         19  to put in an honest day's work for an honest day's

         20  pay. Because they wake up in the morning and go to

         21  work not in a suit, because they are not wearing a

         22  suit does not mean that they also do not wear the

         23  protections that are afforded to everyone who is in

         24  this country.

         25                 The challenge we face, and it's a
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          2  challenge that's apparent in my neighborhood, is how

          3  do we accommodate these hundreds of people everyday

          4  in a way that also works well with the neighborhood

          5  and works well with the local businesses? I'm very

          6  happy to be having this hearing today and when we

          7  had that Town Hall meeting that Council Member Sears

          8  was kind enough to host and really to spearhead, we

          9  made a promise to those in the room that we really

         10  did care. That you would be really rewarded for

         11  trusting us and for participating by coming forward

         12  and having the courage to speak because I know all

         13  to often, the gentlemen who are in this room have

         14  really been treated poorly, either not being paid

         15  full wages, not being paid at all, being harassed.

         16  We said that if you come forward we will have a

         17  hearing at City Hall and we will try to hear you out

         18  and try to come up with a solution. To all of the

         19  people that own small businesses, who have felt

         20  burdened by this, I thank you too for your patience

         21  and for coming here today. I'd also just like to

         22  recognize that Barbara Coleman(phonetic) from the

         23  Woodside Block Association is here and I thank her

         24  for her leadership on this issue. Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

          3  Council Member. We'd like to call up the first

          4  panel. I want to thank everyone for their patience

          5  today. The first group has three witnesses, Librado

          6  Velasquez, Ramon Carreon, and Reverend Terry

          7  Troya(phonetic) who has the distinction of having a

          8  name that rhymes with joya(phonetic). You see, we

          9  think all this out. It's very elegant. Welcome,

         10  please be seated. Reverend Troya(phonetic), I

         11  believe you will be giving your remarks and also

         12  interpreting for the other two witnesses. Is that

         13  correct? Okay great, feel free to begin. Thank you

         14  for being here.

         15                 One other thing, I'd just like to

         16  welcome Council Member Gallagher.

         17                 MR. VELASQUEZ (translated):  My name

         18  is Librado Velasquez and I am a resident of Port

         19  Richmond, Staten Island. I am a member of the

         20  Workers Association of El Centro de Hospitalidad. I

         21  am from Mexico, from the state of Chappas(phonetic).

         22  This is a very poor state with many indigenous

         23  people from indigenous tribes who are decedents of

         24  the Mayan Indians. I have the sole responsibility to

         25  support my wife, my seven children, my father and my
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          2  mother- in- law. I am a campasino(phonetic), a

          3  farmer and I had the responsibility to tend a small

          4  piece of land. I raised corn and beans for my family

          5  and I raised coffee to sell.

          6                 In 1998, here was a great hurricane

          7  of rain, a flood that effected me very much. I lost

          8  my farming land and I lost my house. I pleaded for

          9  help from the Governor of the State of

         10  Chappas(phonetic) to see if they could help us

         11  construct a new house. We received no help. I

         12  traveled to the United States to find work so that I

         13  could pay the debt that I owed for the building of a

         14  new house.

         15                 I traveled from the state of

         16  Chappas(phonetic), which is in the very south of

         17  Mexico, 75 hours by bus and by foot. It took me 36

         18  hours by foot to cross the desert and to pass the

         19  frontier between the United States and Mexico. I

         20  then found a truck that took me from the state of

         21  Arizona all the way to New York where I arrived in

         22  Staten Island where I knew another Mexican friend

         23  lived.

         24                 I went out looking for work the next

         25  day after I had arrived here. I would stand everyday
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          2  in Port Richmond Avenue from six o'clock in the

          3  morning. I accepted all kinds of work; cleaning,

          4  construction, roofing. I would make between $70 and

          5  $80 a day. I live on Port Richmond Avenue. I pay

          6  $160 a month for my rent, including gas and light. I

          7  live in an apartment that I share with seven other

          8  day laborers.

          9                 I found work in the year 2000 in a

         10  company in New Jersey. Many companies from New

         11  Jersey come over the bridge to find people on Port

         12  Richmond Avenue looking for work. That is how I got

         13  this work. My work at this factory was to pack and

         14  unpack cargo from trailers. I worked for this

         15  company off the books for six months. Because I am

         16  an undocumented person, I did not receive any

         17  benefits.

         18                 On the 24th of January 2001, I had an

         19  accident with the forklift. I was a helper and

         20  someone else drove the forklift. I had never

         21  received instructions on how to protect myself when

         22  working with a forklift. We were going from one part

         23  of the factory to the other part of the factory to

         24  do more work. I was standing on the fork of the

         25  forklift when the accident happened. The forklift
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          2  suddenly accelerated and veered off to one side. It

          3  ran into a steel pole, crushing my right arm and leg

          4  between the forklift and the pole. The manager

          5  called an ambulance immediately to take me to the

          6  hospital because I was very badly hurt. I had six

          7  operations in total; five operations on my leg and

          8  one on my arm. From January 24th, 2001 to September

          9  19th, 2002, I have had to see a doctor for these

         10  injuries.

         11                 I have been receiving, since this

         12  time, $300 every two weeks. The last check that was

         13  sent for me came on October 7th. Now I have been

         14  speaking with an attorney to get some kind of

         15  compensation because I am now permanently disabled.

         16  My lawyer informed me that I cannot expect to get

         17  anymore funds for at least a year until the case is

         18  settled. I do not have the use of my leg without

         19  walking with a cane and I do not have strength in my

         20  arm in order to lift things.

         21                 I have no other way to live except if

         22  I receive some other type of compensation. I need

         23  help and I thought maybe my son could come and work

         24  here and support me here in the United States. This

         25  is my testimony and my petition. I thank you very
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          2  much and I ask for your help and first the help of

          3  God. Thank you.

          4                 MR. CARREON(translated):  Good

          5  afternoon. My name is Ramon Carreon and I am from

          6  Mexico City. I come from the Federal District of

          7  Mexico (which is Mexico City). I am 53 years old. I

          8  am responsible for my son, my daughter, one

          9  grandchild and my wife. My son is studying to be an

         10  engineer. I normally send $150 every eight days to

         11  my family. I also pay my rent, my food, my utility

         12  bills here myself in this country. I am here in this

         13  country because in my country there's hardly any

         14  work to be found and even less for an adult trying

         15  to support their family. It's very difficult for

         16  people who are 40 years old and above to find work

         17  in their profession in my country or any job at all.

         18                 When I was 21 years old I learned the

         19  trade of air conditioning and refrigeration. It has

         20  been a fulfilling trade for me and I have sought out

         21  such work when I came to New York. I know a lot

         22  about refrigeration and electrical work as well. I

         23  am a day laborer and I have tried to secure work

         24  standing on the corner of Port Richmond Avenue from

         25  six in the morning until two in the afternoon, but
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          2  without success. One of the biggest problems is our

          3  inability to speak English.

          4                 I would like to give you this

          5  testimony. It's been about two years since I began

          6  working at an air conditioning company in Staten

          7  Island. I began with a starting salary of $6.00 an

          8  hour. About after a month I received an increase to

          9  about $9.00 an hour. I was working there for about

         10  six months but I lacked the language skills to

         11  advance myself. It wasn't that I was unable to

         12  communicate while I was working. I couldn't speak to

         13  the people I was working for.

         14                 I worked on Christmas Eve, New Year's

         15  Eve and Thanksgiving but I was not paid for the work

         16  I did on those days. I told the owner that this was

         17  not fair or just. I was about to leave the job

         18  because it wasn't just what they were doing to me. I

         19  stopped working for them after six months but they

         20  came back to me and they wanted me to work for them

         21  again. He really liked the way I worked. I went back

         22  and everything went well for the first couple of

         23  weeks. During this period I was accumulating

         24  overtime since sometimes I was working from 6 AM to

         25  2 AM the next morning and sometimes all night.
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          2                 On various occasions the owner was

          3  behind on his overtime payment to me and the workers

          4  told my boss that I was owed money. The boss assured

          5  us that it would not happen again. I pointed out to

          6  the boss that people who were working legally did

          7  not have to work more than an eight hour shift but

          8  because I was an undocumented day laborer I had to

          9  work all the time. Four weeks went by and I did not

         10  get the overtime pay I was due so I decided to leave

         11  the job. The boss got upset and said that if I left

         12  the job I would not get paid at all for any of my

         13  work that was owed. The boss said that he was

         14  protected by the authorities and that I could not

         15  intimidate him into giving me the back wages that he

         16  owed me. Three weeks more went by. I felt powerless

         17  and upset waiting to correct this. My boss had hurt

         18  my family since I was the only means of support for

         19  my family back home. If it were not for El Centro de

         20  Hospitalidad in Staten Island directed by Reverend

         21  Troya(phonetic), who took on our case and got us an

         22  attorney, who knows what would have happened. For

         23  the last six months, Legal Aid has been in contact

         24  with an attorney for the company. The lawyer for the

         25  company has communicated to our lawyer that he has
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          2  the money that is owed me but we're not sure if he's

          3  telling the truth. We see El Centro as our Robin

          4  Hood because whatever problems we have El Centro

          5  counsels us and assumes responsibility to advance

          6  our cause. The attorney has stated that this is the

          7  last opportunity for the boss to pay what he is owed

          8  before my case goes to court.

          9                 I would like to thank you for

         10  listening to me and allowing us to express

         11  ourselves. We would like to express the following

         12  about our experience in the United States. Our

         13  presence in New York City and the United States as

         14  Latin American immigrants is one in which we wish to

         15  work with dignity and to contribute our taxes for

         16  the money that we receive and still to be able to

         17  pay our basic necessities and send money out to our

         18  families in our countries of origin. We want to

         19  continue to support the work of El Centro de

         20  Hospitalidad so that they can continue their

         21  humanitarian work. We hope that you will designate a

         22  workers site in Port Richmond without us being a

         23  focal point of inconvenience of trouble to the

         24  public. We would remain forever grateful if you

         25  could grant us official identification that will
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          2  support us and our ability to work whatever country

          3  we come from.

          4                 One of the most frequent problems

          5  that we face is the right of health care which we do

          6  not have and the frequent use of hospitals that we

          7  end up making. A health person is a productive

          8  person and not a source of infection or disease.  We

          9  wish to very much share our talents to raise up this

         10  country. There are many occasions that we have been

         11  lied to, taken to work site, left there without pay

         12  or funds or a way to come back. There is nothing

         13  further to say now except to thank you for your fine

         14  attention.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Very well done

         16  Reverend. I know several members have questions. Did

         17  you want to add something before we go to questions?

         18                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Yes, but in

         19  English. Hi my name is Terry Troya(phonetic) and I'm

         20  the pastor of the New Utrek(phonetic) Reformed

         21  Church in Bensonhurst, Brooklyn. I'm a native Staten

         22  Islander and I work in Port Richmond, about two

         23  blocks from where most of the day laborers in Staten

         24  Island stand for work in the morning. I first became

         25  involved in this work in meeting day laborers in
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          2  Port Richmond and with our local church Saint Mary

          3  of the Assumption Church opened up a small store

          4  front to meet the needs of day laborers in the

          5  community with some classes and training and some

          6  bread and coffee in the morning. In my work in

          7  Bensonhurst, my church was on 18th Avenue, which is

          8  the center of commerce in the Bensonhurst area. Our

          9  Senator at that time, Vincent Gentile had come to

         10  the church and asked that, given the work we were

         11  doing in Staten Island if there was any way that we

         12  could reach out in the community because the day

         13  laborers and the merchants on 18th Avenue were

         14  having problems. The merchants wanted the day

         15  laborers moved. At the same time, I think it was

         16  December 9th of 2001, 40 day laborers came to our

         17  church also asking if there was a place where they

         18  could meet. Their leader Oscar Paredes is the leader

         19  of the Latin American Workers Project, who I believe

         20  is also going to come today, had brought the day

         21  laborers. They really needed a place to meet and

         22  talk with the community about what the issues were

         23  on 18th Avenue.

         24                 On January 6th, there was a meeting

         25  and there were members of a Community Board, the
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          2  Senator's Office and the 62nd Police Precinct, and

          3  members of the Latin American Day Laborers

          4  Association Project and the day laborers from 18th

          5  Avenue. We had periods of meetings at the church

          6  from January to April with the idea of working to

          7  create a work site for the workers. It all came

          8  together.

          9                 I was the most magnificent community

         10  process I ever saw happen from the perspective of

         11  being the pastor in the largest church that happened

         12  to be on that street. In the end, with the

         13  cooperation of the police and the Community Board

         14  and the Merchants Association and especially the

         15  work of the Latin American Workers Project and the

         16  day laborers themselves a work site was opened at

         17  the end of Bay Parkway at what is called Caesar's

         18  Bay Bizarre. A member of our church donated a tent

         19  to the cause and the Association has just done an

         20  amazing job of seeing what were small seeds planted

         21  come into something fruitful. I'm sure that you will

         22  hear more about that project but that gave us the

         23  strength on Staten Island to say, beyond a store

         24  front, what more could be done for the workers that

         25  were in Port Richmond who are significant
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          2  contributors to the economy of Port Richmond.

          3                 Most of the stores now in the

          4  neighborhood are Mexican restaurants and support the

          5  work of the Mexican community, our day laborer

          6  community involves nearly 80 women and close to 200

          7  children of the day laborers as well. There's a

          8  separate women's collective called La Se¤ores de

          9  Santa Maria, which is organized through our center

         10  and the churches on Staten Island support them as

         11  well. In May of 2002, the community of Port Richmond

         12  came together to discuss the possibility of a day

         13  laborer site in Port Richmond. Again, it was an

         14  incredibly comprehensive and continues to be a

         15  comprehensive community process organized by the

         16  Northfield Local Development Corporation and the

         17  Port Richmond Merchants Association and including

         18  members of Community Board One, the Office of

         19  Assemblyman John Laval(phonetic), the Office of

         20  Councilman Mike McMahon (who's here today), the

         21  Senator Vincent Gentile, the 120 Police Precinct,

         22  the Borough President's Office, El Centro de

         23  Hospitalidad (that's our store front), Saint Mary's

         24  of the Assumption Church (which is the largest

         25  congregation for Mexican people in Staten Island and
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          2  Project Hospitality (which is a faith ministry that

          3  I work with to serve hungry and homeless people).

          4  We've been in the process of trying to identify a

          5  site that would meet the needs of the community and

          6  the day laborers. We're not totally there yet but we

          7  are in a process that's dynamic. It's ongoing. It

          8  respectful of the economic situation of Port

          9  Richmond, the strength that the day laborers bring

         10  in contributing to the economy, the concerns of the

         11  merchants who would really like the area in front of

         12  their stores free during the day so that they can

         13  proceed with their own commerce. I just appreciate

         14  the process and we're in process so not at a

         15  solution yet. I believe that we will have a day

         16  laborers site in the coming months.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

         18  Reverend. I really want to thank you for the work

         19  you've been doing and the very positive spirit that

         20  is obvious in everything you are saying. It's a

         21  belief that things can get done and that's the only

         22  way we ever break through tough situations. I want

         23  to thank our two other witnesses for their very

         24  moving testimony. It's very helpful to us to hear

         25  directly what people experience. It helps us very
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          2  much and we appreciate you being here with us.

          3                 I know several members have

          4  questions. First let me introduce Council Member

          5  Gale Brewer and Council Member Bill Perkins. We're

          6  going to first get a question from Council Member

          7  McMahon then a question from Council Member Perkins

          8  and maybe some others. I have to step out for a

          9  brief moment, Council Member Stewart will continue

         10  to chair the meeting.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         12  Mr. Chairman DeBlasio and also Mr. Chairman Stewart

         13  for allowing me to attend today.

         14                 I must say that Reverend

         15  Troya(phonetic) is one of the most incredible people

         16  I've ever met in my life and, as I will lay out for

         17  you, one of the most humble people I've ever met in

         18  my life because what she didn't say is that she is

         19  almost singlehandedly responsible for taking care of

         20  people who are homeless on Staten Island. She

         21  mentioned only briefly what she called the

         22  Interfaith Ministry Project Hospitality but it is

         23  really the single organization that provides

         24  services to hundreds of homeless people on Staten

         25  Island. It's amazing to me how she kind of glossed
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          2  over that and to deal only with the issue that she

          3  deals with at hand. I think this is really a side

          4  issue that grew out of her work... I shouldn't say

          5  side issue but one that kind of developed in her

          6  normal work. She is really synonymous with providing

          7  services for the homeless on Staten Island and doing

          8  so, as she said, in a way that's respectful and

          9  obviously very sensitive to the community. She does

         10  it in a great way so it's really a great honor for

         11  the City Council to welcome you here today.

         12                 I also want to say, if you will

         13  translate one thing to these two gentlemen, that it

         14  was not only wonderful as Chairman DeBlasio said but

         15  very courageous for them to come forward under these

         16  circumstances to tell us about their own

         17  circumstances. We're very grateful for that as well.

         18                 You mentioned our efforts on Staten

         19  Island to set up the type of Center that is needed

         20  and we will continue and I pledge to do so publicly

         21  to continue working with you on that. A question I

         22  have, in terms of a question because if I don't ask

         23  one soon the Chairman will yank and turn off my

         24  microphone. We understand a lot of the concerns that

         25  they talked about and the issues that are confronted
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          2  by any labor force that is either exploited or

          3  treated unfairly by those who hire them. That's

          4  really how the Labor Movement in this country got

          5  started a century and a half ago and so those are

          6  concerns we understand. But how much is the issues

          7  of immigration and naturalization, how do they come

          8  into play? How does it lead to exploitation? How can

          9  it be overcome and what if anything are the federal

         10  and state governments doing to address the issue.

         11                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Twenty words or

         12  less... I think the immigration issue is very key

         13  because most day laborers in Port Richmond are here

         14  without what we consider proper documentation and so

         15  people are afraid of being deported and their

         16  families depend on their income. I think not having

         17  proper documentation really creates the opportunity

         18  for exploitation, whether you're waiting for a job

         19  on the street and not knowing when your check is

         20  going to come or if they're going to pay you,

         21  whether you worked six months somewhere and ended up

         22  in a situation where you were disabled or you

         23  weren't paid at all. I think that's really the crux.

         24  These is going to be a very important immigration

         25  summit in Washington on January 29th and we're going
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          2  down for it. That's being hosted by Congressman

          3  Gutierez(phonetic) I think he's from Chicago. I

          4  think prior to 9/11 we were very close to changes in

          5  immigration and I think that 9/11 set back a lot of

          6  things for other immigrants unfortunately in the

          7  midst of the concerns for our own security in the

          8  nation. It really needs to be resolve at a national

          9  level that is clear.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Again, the

         11  conditions of the community and making sure that

         12  everyone has the basics of what they need for life.

         13  Those are things we can address in the City Council

         14  and working in the community in that regard. In

         15  terms of the immigration, I guess that we are only

         16  advocates who can turn up the level of discussion.

         17  What do you see as a solution to the problem? Have

         18  you thought about it? I mean, you must be very

         19  familiar and well versed in it. What do you think we

         20  should be asking the federal government to do?

         21                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Well there's a

         22  very active, what called an amnesty movement here in

         23  the United States but I think the proper word is

         24  registration. There has been pending legislation in

         25  Congress to grant registration the ability for
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          2  people to register who are here undocumented in the

          3  United States working, in particular for Mexico

          4  because we have a special relationship with the

          5  country that shares the border with us. So I think

          6  registering people and allowing them to live here

          7  under the law would really create the right context

          8  to avoid exploitation. People would have proper

          9  identification. They would have more access to

         10  services. But more than that, they would be able to

         11  work in a more safe environment. People do not want

         12  to be a burden here. People will not accept charity.

         13  They are here to work, that's very clear. I think

         14  registering people and making the laws possible to

         15  waiver in people who have been here working would be

         16  very helpful.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you. I

         18  would like to hear from Councilman Bill Perkins.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Thank you

         20  Mr. Chairman and let me begin by first expressing my

         21  appreciation to Councilwoman Sears and all who are

         22  responsible for bringing this matter before the

         23  Council and the Chairman of the General Welfare as

         24  well as yourself, Council Member Stewart. This is a

         25  significant matter.
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          2                 I want to add my praise and

          3  congratulations to those two brave young men who

          4  came here today to share their stories with us.

          5  Coincidentally, today we are celebrating the

          6  birthday of Dr. Martin Luther King. One of his last

          7  campaigns was a campaign for workers' rights in

          8  Memphis, Tennessee. He was assassinated during the

          9  course of that campaign. It seems quite appropriate

         10  that we would be here today in this institution

         11  attempting to do his work, particularly with the

         12  immigrants that are presently suffering similar

         13  types of abuse that the sanitation workers back then

         14  were suffering.

         15                 There are obviously significant

         16  distinctions but nevertheless, in essence it's about

         17  trying to bring dignity to people's lives in terms

         18  of their employment opportunities. Let me ask on or

         19  two quick questions.

         20                 The employers, what are we doing to

         21  identify them, to track them, to punish them,

         22  sensitize them and the like to that their

         23  exploitation will be costly or discouraged? What is

         24  happening in that vein?

         25                 MS: TROYA(phonetic):  Well just on a
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          2  very small scale in Staten Island we advertise a

          3  phone number where contractors can call us. When

          4  they call and they say they would like two workers

          5  or three workers or whatever we help establish a

          6  standard of pay and we get their name and their

          7  phone number. When they come to pick up the worker

          8  we get their license plate. We know who they are.

          9  This way it's up front, what transpires between the

         10  worker and themselves. We don't have the staff or

         11  the money to trace anybody, however as in the case

         12  of Ramon, we now have a legal aide attorney who

         13  comes once a week to our center. He is able to

         14  follow up with people so long as they have the name

         15  of the contractor and their phone number or a

         16  license plate so that legal aide can work to track

         17  down that person and then try to receive the back

         18  compensation that was due someone.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Are there

         20  employers who are like notorious or repeaters who

         21  are caught and punished or somehow or other dealt

         22  with when you find that they are continuing?

         23                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  On occasion we

         24  find a contractor who will prey on very new people

         25  coming who may have just arrived on the block.
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          2  Literally, when people arrive from Arizona they are

          3  on the next day, standing outside. They don't know

          4  anything about Staten Island except to stand there

          5  and wait for work. They are the ones sometimes, who

          6  get preyed on and people notice who is new on the

          7  street and go after them. I don't know all of their

          8  names but I know that there is a certain portion of

          9  contractors. On the other hand, there are also very

         10  consciences contractors who come to us and who are

         11  not afraid to use their names and to pay fairly.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Do you have

         13  any thoughts about how to deal with these predators?

         14                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  I think that

         15  pursuing them for whatever injustice occurred is the

         16  way to go by pursuing them through legal means.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  DO you think

         18  there's anything else that we could be doing?

         19                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Well forming a

         20  work site will really eliminate a lot of the

         21  exploitation because in a work site (I'm sure that

         22  they will explain the work site in Bensonhurst to

         23  you) what happens is when a contractor pulls up and

         24  you establish a contract between the worker and the

         25  contractor then everything is in writing and it's
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          2  documented. It enforces people to define what kind

          3  of work they want and what kind of wage they are

          4  paying. You create a paper trail for people.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Sort of like

          6  formalizing

          7  the process which is, I guess, sort of ad hoc now.

          8                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Let me ask

         10  you one final question that is probably a tricky

         11  question but... The whole question of unionization,

         12  what's the efforts towards that and what are the

         13  obstacles in that regard?

         14                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Honestly, I'm

         15  not sure I can speak to that but if you... Just one

         16  second, Ramon wanted to say something.

         17                 MR. CARREON(translated):  This is

         18  what I would like to express. You are representative

         19  of the government of this country and as a person

         20  who is an immigrant and not a documented immigrant I

         21  don't have the right to own certain materials or to

         22  have the tools to do some of the job that I would

         23  want to do. I don't have access, licenses. The other

         24  thing is that we need learn to figure out a way to

         25  pay taxes so that we can legitimize ourselves and
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          2  contribute to the state.

          3                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  I wanted to

          4  mention one more thing about exploitation that's

          5  very small but I think significant. We just has in

          6  the last few months an employment agency open up on

          7  our block. What they do is they look for the day

          8  laborers and they make connections with contractors

          9  primarily in New Jersey. What happens is they bring

         10  the day laborers in. They make them fill out form

         11  and say they are going to take their taxes out. They

         12  pay them minimum wage and then they charge them a

         13  fee to take them over the Bayonne Bridge to New

         14  Jersey. The contractors are paying the agency $15 an

         15  hour to provide the worker. The workers are being

         16  paid $5 an hour plus their having taxes taken out

         17  when they haven't filed for a tax identification

         18  number. I don't know where that money is going. I

         19  doubt that the IRS is the first person that's

         20  getting it plus they are being charged

         21  transportation. They end up working a full week and

         22  coming home with $80, which is better than nothing

         23  but it's a form of exploitation because they are

         24  serving as a middle agency and taking the cut from

         25  the contractor. Workers are getting less than they
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          2  could be getting if they are standing on the corner.

          3  That's another form of exploitation. I don't know

          4  how to handle that either. I just wanted to mention

          5  that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Council Member

          7  Gioia.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you Mr.

          9  Chairman and thank all three of you for your

         10  testimony and your leadership on this important

         11  issue.

         12                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  I was

         14  particularly interested in Mr. Velasquez. Your

         15  testimony showed obviously great courage in coming

         16  here. When you were being paid, were you being paid

         17  in cash?

         18                 MR. VELASQUEZ(translated):  It was in

         19  cash.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  For both of

         21  you actually, may I ask...

         22                 MR. CARREON(translated):  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  You said there

         24  were seven guys living in your house. All of them, I

         25  assume were being paid in cash.
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          2                 MR. VELASQUEZ(translated):  Yes and

          3  actually it's not a house. It's a very small two

          4  bedroom apartment with eight people.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Did any of

          6  them have bank accounts? Do you know of anyone with

          7  bank accounts open?

          8                 MR. VELASQUEZ(translated):  No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  I guess what

         10  I'm getting at here is that you've go large

         11  quantities of cash sitting in an apartment. You're

         12  sitting ducks, really. Has there ever been a time

         13  that either of you know of when the house has been

         14  burglarized or though force or threat of force you

         15  have been robbed?

         16                 MR. CARREON(translated):  Yes.

         17                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Ramon knows of

         18  people. I too know of people who have been hit over

         19  the head in the street because they carry their cash

         20  with them. I was trying never to let anybody know

         21  that those opportunities for cash existed in those

         22  apartments. I don't want to spread the word and give

         23  anybody an idea. But you are right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  I'm sorry if

         25  I'm giving... By giving this a public forum.  I just
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          2  assumed that people put two and two together. They

          3  are getting paid cash. They are going home> They are

          4  not opening a bank account. I'm getting evidence for

          5  a theory of mine that this is creating opportunities

          6  for nefarious individuals to go out there and take

          7  advantage of these guys. Because the next step is...

          8  So we've got guys who are working for cash who can't

          9  deposit, who are living together and then the final

         10  step is who are reluctant to go to the police. Am I

         11  correct about that?

         12                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Yes. We see

         14  the public part of the problem in the neighborhood

         15  when the people complain and we hear about people

         16  not getting paid but this is part of the dark

         17  underbelly of the situation that we're not yet

         18  talking about. It is a very severe problem that we

         19  need to address. That's what I'm trying to elicit by

         20  asking these questions. I'm also speaking way too

         21  much for you to translate.

         22                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  But that's

         23  exactly it. You are creating the context for people

         24  to become victims and for crime to occur.

         25  Absolutely. There are some banks that allow you to
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          2  open bank accounts with an I10 number, which is a

          3  number that you register with IRS if you don't have

          4  a Social Security number. We've actually working to

          5  get people to fill out those forms. But there is a

          6  fear that exists that with the new security measures

          7  nationally, and with the agencies all working

          8  together (which is a good thing for our security as

          9  a country) that people may be tracked down as a

         10  result of their I10 number and end up being

         11  deported. So there's a fear for people to come

         12  forward and fill out those form. But you need that

         13  number in order to open up a bank account.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Right. I'm

         15  going to be cut short but it is something that I'd

         16  like to pursue with you. Thank you.

         17                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you. One

         20  more question for this panel and then we have

         21  several other panels. Council Member Gale Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         23                 MR. VELASQUEZ(translated):  Librado

         24  wanted you to know that he's not angry or upset that

         25  he had the accident. That this is just how life is.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you. At

          3  another hearing and another discussion we have a

          4  bill that talks about domestic workers on the

          5  women's side. I'm thinking about household workers

          6  and people working in the home and some of the same

          7  problems that you described happen in the home. The

          8  reason I ask this is we're moving quickly with the

          9  Administration to have a bill that lays out, as you

         10  have done, locally the responsibilities of employer

         11  and employee and the agency. So everybody knows what

         12  you do and what you don't do.

         13                 There's a sticking point that I want

         14  to know how you handled. We would like, me and the

         15  advocates, to have a signature so that the employer

         16  and the agency and the employee sign what they do

         17  during the day. Is that something that is necessary

         18  in your case or are you able to just have a piece of

         19  paper that the contractor has and he know that this

         20  is what the worker is gong to do? DO you have a

         21  signature? How does it clear with everyone

         22  understanding his rights?

         23                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  That's a great

         24  question. We don't have a signature. I believe that

         25  the Bensonhurst site (you will hear from the Latin
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          2  Americans Workers Project) do get a signature. It's

          3  a good idea to get it. We're just not organized

          4  enough to get that done. On the domestic workers

          5  side, all of our referrals come through the local

          6  Catholic Church. We advertise in church bulletins.

          7  So we're getting people of good will that call for

          8  the domestic workers and we set the minimum wage at

          9  $10 and hour. The women have guidelines of what they

         10  do and don't do. That gets negotiated over the phone

         11  and it's really improved their opportunities for

         12  work as well as their working conditions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And then, so

         14  you know since we've started this discussion with

         15  the Department of Consumer Affairs what has become

         16  clear are some of the issues regarding employer

         17  agencies, as you described down the street. So you

         18  should just be in touch with Gretchen

         19  Dykstra(phonetic) at the Department of Consumer

         20  Affairs regarding that issue. She's very much on top

         21  of it.

         22                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Oh great,

         23  thanks a lot. We thought we were the only one's in

         24  the world that had that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Not at all.
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          2  Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

          4  again very much to all members of the panel and

          5  Reverend thank you for bringing everyone together

          6  here today. Thank you for your good work.

          7                 MS. TROYA(phonetic):  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Hold on one

          9  moment, if our Counsel would approach the bench...

         10  You have a special guest and I just want to know if

         11  he's ready. Are you okay? Alright, he's quick on his

         12  feet. Our next witness was just mentioned in the

         13  previous testimony for having contributed very

         14  significantly to creating positive atmosphere for

         15  solving these difficult problems in his community.

         16  We're honored to have with us our colleague Senator

         17  Vincent Gentile. It's good to have you on the other

         18  side of the microphone Senator. We don't do swearing

         19  in so it's all very informal. But thank you again.

         20  We know nowadays that you have a very, very busy

         21  schedule for the next two weeks especially and we

         22  appreciate that you took the time to join us and we

         23  thank the other witnesses for their patience. We

         24  want to make sure that you got a chance to get on

         25  right away. So we welcome you and again, we thank
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          2  you for the excellent work you've done on this

          3  issue.

          4                 MR. GENTILE:  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

          5  I appreciate the opportunity even in the midst of

          6  what's happening otherwise to have the opportunity

          7  to be present and speak about this project that we

          8  undertook in Brooklyn. It's certainly good to see

          9  all of the other members of the Council here and

         10  also Reverend Troya(phonetic) and I believe that we

         11  will be joined later by Oscar Paredes from the Latin

         12  Americans Worker's Project.

         13                 If you want, Mr. Chairman, I can...

         14  I'm not sure, I guess with Reverend Troya(phonetic)

         15  here you probably heard something about...

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  She covered

         17  most of the ground. We always welcome our witnesses

         18  to summarize. We have your formal testimony that

         19  will be included in the record. Feel free to read it

         20  but we always prefer a summarizing if that works for

         21  you.

         22                 MR. GENTILE:  Sure. What occurred

         23  about a year ago, March 4th to be exact, was the

         24  project that we put into place as a result of

         25  several problems that were occurring in the
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          2  Bensonhurst area of Brooklyn. Particularly on 18th

          3  Avenue in Brooklyn. That was the increase in traffic

          4  problems on 18th Avenue particularly near 65th

          5  Street. In that precinct, the 62 Precinct in

          6  Brooklyn, 65th Street and 18th Avenue was the most

          7  accident prone location in the entire police

          8  precinct. That was due in large part not only to the

          9  traffic but also the types of activity that was

         10  going on at the time of day laborers being on 18th

         11  Avenue and contractors trying to pick up day

         12  laborers along 18th Avenue and 65th Street. That

         13  contributed to double parking, triple parking,

         14  stopping in the middle of 65th Street to pick up.

         15  Mr. Chairman you know what that looks like on a busy

         16  morning.

         17                 That was one of our problems. The

         18  other problem obviously was the quality of life

         19  issue for the residents in and around 18th Avenue

         20  and the businesses for the numbers of people that

         21  were growing on the streets of day laborers. We were

         22  having, over the past five years, we've been growing

         23  every year by hundreds and hundreds of day laborers

         24  on the avenue. That just presented quality issues

         25  for the residents as well as the businesses in that
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          2  area.

          3                 When I got involved in this problem,

          4  it was seen almost as a problem that nobody wanted

          5  to tackle but I spoke to some of the workers and we

          6  determined that there was another problem. Probably

          7  Reverend Troya(phonetic) told you about that and

          8  that was the worker exploitation of these workers

          9  that just got picked up for a day or two. One worker

         10  said to me that he (and two others I believe) were

         11  actually taken by a contractor to Queens and they

         12  were taking material out of a warehouse and when the

         13  material was taken out of the warehouse they were

         14  left in Queens by the contractor. They realized at

         15  that point that they probably participated in a

         16  burglary and did not know it. Needless to say, they

         17  weren't paid. But certainly there were many, many

         18  stories of the workers not being paid, workers not

         19  getting paid what they were told they were going to

         20  be getting paid. That was another issue, another

         21  concern of mine about the worker exploitation that

         22  was going on

         23                 I met with Reverend Troya(phonetic)

         24  with the 62 Precinct and the Commander of the 62

         25  Precinct and we began to dialog with the workers and
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          2  then we asked the Latin Americans Worker's Project

          3  to join us also. Together with the Precinct, with

          4  Reverend Troya(phonetic) and her church, with the

          5  Latin American Worker's Project, we put together the

          6  project that now we look at and evaluate. This

          7  project entailed two things. Number one, strict

          8  police enforcement of all traffic regulations on or

          9  about 18th Avenue and 65th Street and the vicinity.

         10  Second, asking the day laborers to congregate on Bay

         11  Parkway at Caesar's Bay. That is the project in a

         12  nutshell. We had a notification period for the

         13  workers. The enforcement of the traffic regulations

         14  began in March of 2002. For one month prior to that

         15  we had, and I believe every member here has a copy,

         16  we had fliers distributed to the workers and I spoke

         17  with member of my staff and those who spoke Spanish

         18  went to the workers on 18th Avenue and vicinity and

         19  asked them to please join us in this effort. We had

         20  meeting with Reverend Troya's(phonetic) church about

         21  this issue and asked them to please join us in this

         22  project in congregation down at Bay Parkway. That

         23  was one month. We not only did it for the workers

         24  but we contacted the contractors and let the

         25  contractors know that beginning March 4th of last
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          2  year, we were going to begin strict enforcement of

          3  all traffic regulation. When March 4th came around,

          4  we had a special police detail on 18th Avenue and

          5  the vicinity and that special police detail operated

          6  in two ways. Number one was to remind the workers

          7  that might still be on 18th Avenue that the new

          8  location was on Bay Parkway. And obviously the

          9  police detail was there to summons the contractors

         10  that tried to double park, pull over or triple park

         11  or park on a hydrant or park on the bus stop.

         12  Whereas it was overlooked before, it would no longer

         13  as of that date be overlooked. What this resulted as

         14  was, I think in the long run, a win, win situation.

         15  Again, I didn't hear Reverend Troya(phonetic) but I

         16  imagine that she touched on this. That it really

         17  resulted in a win, win situation not only for the

         18  day laborers but for the community also. For the

         19  community it relieved the congestion that we had

         20  along the avenue, relieved the congestion and

         21  traffic problems on 18th Avenue. I think for the

         22  workers it provided better protection and fairness

         23  because we introduced the Latin American Worker's

         24  Project. Having the Latin American Worker's Project

         25  there on site at Bay Parkway allowed the workers to
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          2  have someone to represent them in dealing with the

          3  contractor. I think Reverend Troya(phonetic)

          4  referred to the fact that contractors now have to

          5  fill out a form and I think the form is in your

          6  folder. They fill out this form and unlike to

          7  contacts they had on 18th Avenue where no one knew

          8  who was picking up anyone, here now we have some

          9  record of who is picking up the workers so that if

         10  there is a problem, this record exists. As a result

         11  the workers have been getting better wages. They've

         12  been getting fairer wages and they've also been

         13  getting paid what they have been promised for the

         14  day. I think that is a big plus and a big step for

         15  the workers. What we've been able to do as a result

         16  is that down at the site itself, and I'll pass this

         17  around, it is at the end of Caesar's Bay Bizarre.

         18  There's a sign that indicates the types of work that

         19  are available from the day laborers. It indicated

         20  the hourly rates or the full day rates for the types

         21  of work that they do. We've now been able to enclose

         22  the workers inside a tent. I think that was greatly

         23  due to Reverend Troya(phonetic) and her efforts.

         24  Certainly, this is something... We've just installed

         25  phone service into the location so that contractors
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          2  can call in and workers can call out. We now have

          3  heaters and generators to heat the place during the

          4  winter. Certainly it's a fairer system too. Because

          5  when workers come, they put their names on a list

          6  and if they have a particular skill they list that

          7  skill. Unlike just the haphazard way it was done on

          8  the avenue when a contractor pulled up on the avenue

          9  there would be six or seven people running to a van.

         10  Now it's a more controlled situation whereby the

         11  contractor pulls up, speaks to the representative

         12  from the Latin American Worker's Project, determines

         13  what type of help he needs and then that person on

         14  the list will be asked to go if some kind of wage

         15  can be worked out.

         16                 I think that's a major plus for the

         17  workers and as I said it's a win for the community

         18  too. I also have to mention, Mr. Chairman that the

         19  Independence Community Foundation, that's the

         20  Independence Savings Bank has granted us $25,000 to

         21  the Latin American Worker's Project as a grant to

         22  keep this project running and that helped to

         23  purchase some supplies, to pay some of the salaries

         24  of the Latin American Worker's Project people. I

         25  think it had something to do with the tent too. Did
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          2  it? It did, right. So we're indebted to the

          3  Independence Community Foundation of the

          4  Independence Savings Bank for their effort. I

          5  believe you have that letter in your packet.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Senator, I had

          7  a question for you but if you wanted to finish I...

          8                 MR. GENTILE:  Just an over all

          9  evaluation, we're coming up on the one year

         10  anniversary of the project and I believe overall

         11  it's been a good project. It has somewhat of an

         12  uneven success because it's somewhat of a battle of

         13  will mostly between the police and the contractors.

         14  Because contractors are the ones that insist on

         15  having to pick up workers on 18th Avenue as opposed

         16  to Bay Parkway and making whatever side deals they

         17  want to make with the workers. We're trying to make

         18  it a more organized and fairer system for everybody.

         19  There are instances where we still have contractors

         20  going back to 18th Avenue and we still need that

         21  police enforcement to keep the contractors with the

         22  knowledge that they will receive a summons. During

         23  part of this project we were actually towing

         24  contractors that stopped on 18th Avenue.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Just a couple
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          2  of quick questions. I know my collages have

          3  questions too. First of all, on a given day how many

          4  workers participate in the location at Caesar's Bay

          5  Bizarre?

          6                 MR. GENTILE:  It varies with the

          7  weather. It varies with the season. In the

          8  springtime and the summertime we can have as many as

          9  100 to 150 people coming down. Now in the wintertime

         10  was had about 40 people today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  In terms of

         12  the wages, I'm looking at the pictures that you

         13  brought which are very helpful, do I understand

         14  correctly? It looks like the wage levels per hour,

         15  not just per day there's a separate charge, per hour

         16  are a minimum of $12 and maximum of $20.

         17                 MR. GENTILE:  Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  That is very

         19  gratifying because obviously that's a living wage

         20  but is this in any way a disincentive because these

         21  are obviously appropriate wages and do the employers

         22  think if they go elsewhere, on 18th Avenue, they can

         23  pay the sub- minimum wage and that creates a

         24  disincentive?

         25                 MR. GENTILE:  It has been a problem
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          2  and that's why we have contractors trying to make

          3  their own deals with workers on 18th Avenue rather

          4  than coming down to the location.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And vis- a-

          6  vis the police, I've had a little experience with

          7  this in my community. I have found they are

          8  grappling with the problem because they feel it's a

          9  complex problem. It's a tough one to enforce in

         10  terms of identifying which vehicle is an employer

         11  and that they do something that makes it 100% clear

         12  what their intentions are and then what specific

         13  enforcement steps you can take. Have you had success

         14  in getting the police when you have an employer

         15  inappropriately trying to pick up on 18th Avenue

         16  particularly since you now have a good alternative?

         17  Have the police been aggressive in terms of

         18  summonsing, in terms of towing vehicles? Has that

         19  been the level it's gotten to?

         20                 MR. GENTILE:  I must say the precinct

         21  itself, the 62 Precinct has been very good in

         22  enforcing this program and in initiating and

         23  carrying it out. The summonsing has gone on

         24  everyday, if that occurs. The towing is not always

         25  enforced because they don't always have a police tow
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          2  van available to them. We have been able to work it

          3  out with the traffic division to occasionally get

          4  that tow truck there. If it's there on occasion at

          5  least contractors never know when their van could be

          6  towed. So to that extent it does serve as a

          7  deterrent. But the police have been very good on

          8  this project.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I think we

         10  would all like to learn from your experience and

         11  maybe we'll set up a field trip one of these days

         12  because obviously you're doing something very

         13  cutting edge. I know my colleagues have questions. I

         14  just wanted to say I appreciate the balance you

         15  brought to this situation in trying to find an

         16  equitable solution. It certainly is a very helpful

         17  model.

         18  My colleague, Council Member Stewart, the Chairman

         19  of the Immigration Subcommittee wanted to ask the

         20  first question.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you Mr.

         22  Chair. Thank you for coming down Mr. Gentile. A

         23  while ago we heard from one of the speakers that

         24  there's a problem with some of the makeshift

         25  employment agencies that really take the bulk of the
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          2  money and gives the workers minimum wages or below

          3  minimum wages. How do you see your system benefiting

          4  the workers and letting them know that your system

          5  is going to be the way to go?

          6                 MR. GENTILE:  Well, I think it's a

          7  matter of education and letting people know. It took

          8  us a month just to get the word out that there was

          9  going to be a new location. Even after that started

         10  there were still people on 18th Avenue. It's a

         11  matter of getting the word out through networking.

         12  The wages as you see there in that picture are

         13  reasonable wages. The Latin American Worker's

         14  Project is the lead in that regard, in terms of

         15  setting the wages and negotiating with the

         16  contractors.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  What ways do

         18  you see that we can get the employers to see the

         19  benefit of coming to you rather than going to these

         20  makeshift employment agencies?

         21                 MR. GENTILE:  Well I think what they

         22  will see is that they're going to get workers that

         23  are commensurate with the job they need done because

         24  the Latin American Worker's Project lists the

         25  workers by the skills that they have available.
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          2  You're going to get, if a contractor comes to this

          3  location and needs a k=skilled carpenter or needs a

          4  painter or someone who's a plumber, they will have

          5  those types of skills available at that location. I

          6  believe it's never been a problem that a contractor

          7  has come and has been given a worker who did not

          8  have the skills that were needed. I think if a

          9  contractor comes to that location they will be

         10  assured of getting the skill that they are seeking.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Council Member

         13  Sears.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you Mr.

         15  Chair. Welcome. Just two questions for brevity. I'm

         16  looking at your pictures here and some of the worker

         17  is seasonal. What happens when they are i the off

         18  season? Quite a bit of this work is outdoors, what

         19  do they do? Where do they go? How do they survive?

         20                 MR. GENTILE:  I don't know all of the

         21  answers to that. I don't.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I don't.

         23                 MR. GENTILE:  I don't know the

         24  answers to that but certainly I know that there were

         25  workers, I went by today, there were workers there
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          2  today. But they are very honest. It's very difficult

          3  when it's as cold as it is today. There's very

          4  little work available to them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It presents

          6  many other challenges.

          7                 MR. GENTILE:  And many other

          8  challenges, absolutely. Certainly they were there to

          9  work. Even in that cold weather, they were there to

         10  work. I don't believe there were more than a handful

         11  of people, contractors who came by today. I believe

         12  Reverend Troya(phonetic) offers her services in her

         13  church and we do have regular meeting or occasional

         14  meeting with the workers just to see how they are

         15  doing but in terms of what they do in the interim,

         16  is something that maybe the Latin American Worker's

         17  Project might be able to fill in.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Perhaps. Also,

         19  at these job centers is English as a Second Language

         20  ever made available?

         21                 MR. GENTILE:  Councilwoman that's a

         22  very good point.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That is

         24  because, as someone who has run hospitals, I can

         25  tell you that we couldn't hire anybody in
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          2  maintenance to wash a floor if they didn't have a

          3  little bit of the command of the English language

          4  and to read because they had to mix solutions that

          5  could be very damaging to them. I'm amazed at the

          6  years and years that this situation has existed.

          7  There doesn't seem to be any development to get them

          8  out of the level so that they would be able to move

          9  up. The language is certainly a major issue.

         10                 MR. GENTILE:  That's a very good

         11  point and is something that I overlooked to say. We

         12  have been able to use the down time of the workers

         13  being there as a group and if they're not picked up

         14  by contractors they are there for a couple of hours

         15  everyday. We've been able to use that time. The

         16  Latin American Worker's Project has people coming

         17  down teaching English as a Second Language at the

         18  location under the tent. So there is a value in the

         19  workers coming down even if they don't get a job for

         20  that day. There's a value for them to come down and

         21  participate in those classes. We also had Health

         22  Plus come down and give some talks about signing

         23  people up for health insurance and health services.

         24  So we've been able to do that. We would never be

         25  able to do that on 18th Avenue where they are spread
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          2  out all over the place. If we have them in one

          3  location, we can provide those types of services.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I thank you.

          5  There's a lot of work to be done with this and

          6  you've done great and the Reverend. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

          8  Senator, this has been very, very helpful and we

          9  appreciate you providing... One of the hardest

         10  things in government as you know is an actual

         11  working model of something that can solve a tough

         12  problem. This is very, very helpful.

         13                 MR. GENTILE:  I appreciate your kind

         14  words and it's a work in progress. It really is. I

         15  hope in some capacity to continue to be doing that

         16  for some time to come.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Good luck to

         18  you. Thank you.

         19                 MR. GENTILE:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Our next

         21  panel, C. Michael Higgins from the Attorney

         22  General's Office, Mike McGuire from the Mason

         23  Tenders and Steven Markowitz and Beverly Tillery of

         24  Queens College. And again my colleague Kendall

         25  Stewart is going to Chair a portion of this section.
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          2  I have to step out for a brief moment again. Mr.

          3  Higgins, Mr. McGuire, and Mr. Markowitz and Ms.

          4  Tillery of Queens College.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Although we may

          6  now you already by name we would like for you to

          7  state your name before you give your testimony.

          8  Maybe we can start with Mr. McGuire.

          9                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Good afternoon

         10  Chairman. My name is Michael McGuire. I am the

         11  Director of Governmental and Legislative Affairs for

         12  the Mason Tender District Council of Greater New

         13  York and Long Island.

         14            The plight of day laborers is one that is

         15  long overdue for government oversight and I commend

         16  this committee for holding this hearing. As someone

         17  who is involved in organized labor, it is inevitable

         18  that I hear various anti- labor arguments from

         19  certain people. One of the most often heard is

         20  Unions were once necessary but that is no longer the

         21  case. Whenever I hear that I point to the day

         22  laborers. These people are mistreated, placed in

         23  life threatening situations, cheated out of their

         24  wages, exploited in every way. Just in the

         25  construction industry, look at some of the cases in
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          2  the last few years.

          3                 The case of Eduardo Gutierrez,

          4  probably the best known because Jimmy Breslin wrote

          5  a book about it, who was only 18 years old in

          6  November 1999 when he drowned in a basement flooded

          7  with wet concrete after a partial building collapse

          8  on a building site in Williamsburg, Brooklyn.

          9  Alberto Loja died when he fell off a partially

         10  constructed building two days after Christmas in

         11  November 2000. The case of five day laborers who

         12  were killed on October 24th 2001 when a scaffold

         13  they were working on collapsed in the rear courtyard

         14  of 215 Park Avenue South. Olivo Modesto, who was

         15  killed when a ceiling collapsed on him sending him

         16  crashing through seven floors of a decrepit

         17  building being renovated in Harlem last April. There

         18  was the case of a day laborer critically injured

         19  when a wall at a construction site collapsed on him

         20  on May 16, 2002. There was another case of two day

         21  laborers killed and five others injured at another

         22  scaffold collapse, this one on the upper east side,

         23  also on May 16th, 2002. I came up with these cases

         24  by doing a search of New York Daily News archives. I

         25  typed in the phrase "day laborer" and it returned 50
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          2  articles. Day laborers killed, day laborers injured,

          3  day laborers beaten, day laborers forced to abate

          4  asbestos with no safety equipment, day laborers

          5  cheated out of their wages. There were just two

          6  positive articles, just two about setting up the

          7  hiring hall in a tent in Bensonhurst, Brooklyn that

          8  Senator Gentile just spoke about.

          9                 We have come across day laborers

         10  working as construction laborers receiving total

         11  compensation of $50 to $60 per seven to ten hour

         12  work day. That comes out to $6 to $7 an hour. The

         13  area standard wage and benefit package for

         14  construction laborers is $41.21 an hour. These

         15  workers are not being paid one half of what they

         16  should be making. They are not being paid one third

         17  of what they should be making. No, they are being

         18  paid one sixth of what they should be making. There

         19  are cases of day laborers going weeks or months

         20  without getting paid. There are cases of day

         21  laborers not being paid at all. We have seen day

         22  laborers being forced to work without hard hats,

         23  without respirators, without gloves or goggles or

         24  work boots. In the case I mentioned earlier, five

         25  day laborers were hired to remove asbestos from a
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          2  warehouse in Fort Greene. The equipment each was

          3  given to remove the asbestos was a knife. When one

          4  of the workers realized that asbestos was dangerous

          5  and complained, he was given a rag to tie over his

          6  face. For this they were paid the princely sum of

          7  $5.25 per hour. The asbestos needed to be removed

          8  from the warehouse because the landlord have been

          9  offered a $50 million lease on his building.

         10                 There has been a move recently to

         11  create hiring halls in an effort to alleviate these

         12  problems. This is definitely a step in the right

         13  direction. However, to set up hiring halls that

         14  would give the workers the protection they are

         15  entitled to is far beyond the available means,

         16  especially in the cash strapped condition in which

         17  the city and the state currently finds themselves.

         18  The one mention in the Daily News article was funded

         19  by a $25,000 grant. It is designed to provide

         20  shelter and training for day laborers. In contrast,

         21  the Mason Tenders District Council Training Fund

         22  spent over $3 million dollars on training

         23  construction workers in the Fiscal Year 2002 alone.

         24  This training includes such topics outside of

         25  construction skills as basic literacy and English as
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          2  a Second Language. It is estimate that New York

          3  City's building trades unions spend in excess of $20

          4  million each year on training workers. Hiring halls

          5  help but do not go nearly far enough. For the most

          6  part, they are a cosmetic fix hiding the day

          7  laborers away from the disapproving eyes of the

          8  members of the community. Day laborers need real

          9  training and real representation. This means

         10  organizing them into union. Contractors who exploit

         11  day laborers should be punished to the fullest

         12  extent of the law both civilly and criminally. In

         13  light of the Hoffman Plastic Compounds vs. NLRB

         14  ruling, I would urge the City Council to do whatever

         15  is in their legislative capabilities to strengthen

         16  protection for these workers on a local level.

         17                 The Mason Tenders' District Council

         18  of Greater New York and Long Island, along with its

         19  six constituent locals and their 15,000 members

         20  fully support Resolution #447. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thanks.

         22                 MR. HIGGINS:  My name is Michael

         23  Higgins and I am the Assistant Attorney General for

         24  the State of New York. Thank you very much for your

         25  interest in these very difficult and important set
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          2  of issues. The Attorney General is very concerned

          3  about these issues as well and that is why he has

          4  created a task force on day laborers and I work on

          5  that task force.

          6                 There are three main components

          7  within the Attorney General's task force, education,

          8  wage disputes and advocacy. In the education realm,

          9  we work with community groups in trying to gather

         10  day laborers and inform them about their rights and

         11  also inform that out strategies that they can use to

         12  try to protect their rights. In the wage dispute

         13  realm, we have two main steps. In the first step we

         14  try to handle disputes informally and we mediate

         15  between employers and employees. The overwhelming

         16  majority of the disputes that we see are settled at

         17  this informal mediation stage. At the second stage,

         18  if we are not able to mediate a controversy and we

         19  still have a live controversy at that point, we

         20  evaluate whether we can accept the case. I will

         21  bring the information that I have into our Bureau

         22  Chief. She will assess the strength of the case, the

         23  importance of the issues involved and also the case

         24  load that we have in our office at that time in

         25  determining if we can enter into more formal
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          2  negotiations and the possibility of litigation down

          3  the road in these types of wage disputes.

          4                 In the realm of advocacy, we have

          5  focused on promotion of the use of certain types of

          6  hiring types in centers for day laborers. In

          7  Farmingville, the Attorney General will urge the

          8  Suffolk County Legislature to overturn the County

          9  Executive's veto of using county funds to partially

         10  support a hiring hall for day laborers. The Attorney

         11  General examined those proposals and determined that

         12  it would be legal to run that particular hiring hall

         13  at that time. It's hard to say in any kind of

         14  blanket manner whether all such hiring centers would

         15  be legal or not. We would need to examine what the

         16  proposal are. There are problems if, for example,

         17  centers that may be referring workers for a fee,

         18  that raises a whole set of issues under current law.

         19  The second set of difficulties in this is the

         20  immigration law does change frequently. So before we

         21  could give an opinion about whether a particular

         22  center would be legal we would need to look at it

         23  carefully in the time frame that was involved.

         24                 In Spring Valley, which is in

         25  Rockland County, the Attorney General urged the
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          2  establishment of a center there along the lines that

          3  had been proposed and that has been established. One

          4  of the biggest problems that the Spring Valley site

          5  is having and I have heard this from other witnesses

          6  as well is attracting employers to the site. In the

          7  Spring Valley site they have had no trouble at all

          8  attracting day laborers. They are doing the same

          9  kinds of social services that it sounds like the

         10  Bensonhurst site is doing as well. But in terms of

         11  attracting employers I think the skills assessments

         12  is a very important component of it. One approach

         13  that had been used in Spring Valley is to have

         14  Village police encourage day laborers and employers

         15  to use the center. They wouldn't exclude the

         16  possibility of enforcement or penalties but their

         17  first step was encouraging people to do this. The

         18  thought behind this was that it will break up the

         19  groups of people that cause a lot of the

         20  difficulties for the neighboring situation and it

         21  may result in a longer term gain of better use for

         22  the center without the kinds of selective

         23  enforcement problems that enforcement can bring or

         24  without intruding on civil liberties. Also without

         25  hopefully without chasing people away into
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          2  establishing another informal site.

          3                 I am eager to hear reaction from

          4  other people who work with day laborers too about

          5  whether they believe that this more informal

          6  approach than what's being taken in Brooklyn may be

          7  a positive direction as well.

          8                 One matter I wanted to address to

          9  Chairman Stewart was his concern about predators and

         10  repeat offenders. We did have some experience with

         11  this in Ossining(phonetic). We were working with the

         12  Hispanic Employment Labor Project up there and

         13  Father Edward Burn(phonetic) was the key organizer

         14  there. He had brought to us a number of contractors

         15  who had several small claims court judgements

         16  against them and refused to pay it. They just chose

         17  to ignore the courts. Under the small claims court

         18  law, if you have three unpaid judgements against you

         19  and you get the required amount of notice, which is

         20  30 days, then treble(phonetic) damages can be

         21  assessed. Once we sent out those notices, we got

         22  everybody to pay off because they didn't want to

         23  assess treble(phonetic) damages.

         24                 I'm wondering if this might be

         25  something open to City Council. Drafting something
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          2  aimed at day laborers and aimed at these repeat

          3  offenders that if they do have, either in small

          4  claims court or in any other legal realm, if they do

          5  have these repeated instances in which they have

          6  judgments against them, doing something like

          7  treble(phonetic) damages may be useful as a tool in

          8  cutting down on repeat offenders.

          9                 That is the extent of my prepared

         10  testimony. If any of you have questions...

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  At the end of

         12  the testimony people may ask questions.

         13                 MR. HIGGINS:  Okay. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Next please.

         15                 MS. TILLERY:  Hi, my name is Beverly

         16  Tillery and I'm actually not with Queens College. I

         17  work with an organization called NYCOSH, which is

         18  the New York Committee for Occupational Safety and

         19  Health. I'm the Coordinator of the Immigrant Project

         20  there.

         21                 NYCOSH is a private non- profit

         22  occupational health and safety organization. We have

         23  over 200 local unions that are members and several

         24  hundred individuals as well. We believe that there

         25  are specific steps that the City Council can take to
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          2  help address the abuses that day laborers are facing

          3  everyday on the city. These include something that

          4  you have already heard about.

          5                 One specifically, educating day

          6  laborers about work place hazards, ways to protect

          7  themselves on the job and their rights. With

          8  training and support we believe that workers... And

          9  also with some legal assistance, workers will be

         10  able to avoid preventable injuries and deaths that

         11  are occurring at a number of work sites.

         12                 Secondly, bring health care to the

         13  day laborers where they are. Medical van services

         14  should travel to day laborer pick up sites to give

         15  workers the initial exams and treatments that they

         16  need.

         17                 Third, train legal aide and legal

         18  service attorneys about workers compensation, making

         19  sure that they are able to handle cases for

         20  immigrant workers. Legal assistance needs to be

         21  available to workers, in fact, all immigrant workers

         22  who are filing workers compensation claims.

         23                 Number four, develop a day laborer

         24  hiring system whereby employers must sign contracts

         25  stipulating that workers will be paid a fair living
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          2  wage but also receive safety and health training and

          3  be provided personal and protective equipment while

          4  they are on the job.

          5            Five, use this hiring system to hold

          6  employers accountable. As you have already heard,

          7  right now unscrupulous employers know that they can

          8  violate the law without retribution. Employers need

          9  to really be sent a message that all workers in New

         10  York City will be protected from abuse.

         11                 We feel like all of these steps can

         12  be made even more possible by establishing these day

         13  laborer hiring centers that people have already

         14  talked about. You already know that immigrants face

         15  huge risks on the job. In New York State in 2001 we

         16  had the highest rate of immigrants killed in the

         17  work place. Nationally, the rate of occupational

         18  deaths has been decreasing since 1994. But the rate

         19  for Latino workers has increased by over 50%. This

         20  trend has been attributed to Latinos working in more

         21  dangerous jobs such as construction, language

         22  barriers and also fear of workers to complain.

         23  Immigrant day laborers are often forced to take very

         24  dangerous jobs for little or uncertain pay.

         25                 After September 11th, 2001 day
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          2  laborers were hired to clean the World Trade Center

          3  dust and debris from buildings in lower Manhattan.

          4  They were primarily Latino immigrants who were non-

          5  union, non- English speaking. None of they had

          6  received any type of safety training or protective

          7  equipment from their employers. Very few had health

          8  insurance. NYCOSH partnered with the Latin American

          9  Worker's Project and the Center for Biology of

         10  Natural Systems from Queens College to set up a

         11  medical mobile van. We placed it about a block and a

         12  half from ground zero. We conduct free medical

         13  examinations for the workers. At the van, NYCOSH

         14  staff also conducted health and safety trainings. We

         15  fitted the day laborers with free respirators.

         16                 As of last Fall, about 100 of the day

         17  laborers are still contacting NYCOSH with questions

         18  about how to get medical care and workers

         19  compensation. There are no easy answers to give them

         20  right now. Without medical insurance, you've already

         21  heard, they have to seek care in emergency rooms and

         22  they face long waits, intimidating questions,

         23  demands for payment. Undocumented workers are afraid

         24  to take advantage of some of the available benefits

         25  that are out there.
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          2                 Workers compensation is a good

          3  example. It's supposed to cover medical expenses and

          4  lost time but workers compensation attorneys are

          5  often not willing to take cases that only result in

          6  medical payments because it's not cost effective for

          7  them. Day laborers have difficulty documenting their

          8  employment so that means lost time and wages can

          9  rarely be recovered through workers compensation.

         10  Without assistance from an attorney, they have very

         11  little chance of getting anything from the workers

         12  compensation system. This leaves them without

         13  medical care and compensation.

         14                 This scenario is true for thousands

         15  of day laborers around the city. Again, we believe

         16  what needs to be done is bring health care to the

         17  day laborers, educate them about their risks and

         18  their rights, train attorneys to handle these

         19  workers compensation cases. Develop hiring systems

         20  and use the system to hold employers accountable.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 MR. MARKOWITZ:  Good afternoon. I'm

         23  Steven Markowitz. I'm a physician in Occupational

         24  and Environmental medicine. Which means I specialize

         25  in the effects of toxic chemical on people. I Direct
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          2  the Center for the Biology of Natural Systems for

          3  Queens College- City University of New York. Our

          4  center is a research institute in environmental and

          5  occupational health that exists to serve the people

          6  of New York City and New York State.

          7                 First, I would like to recognize

          8  Council Member Quinn, who was here before, who is

          9  enormously supportive of the efforts that I'm going

         10  to describe. Ms. Tillery described briefly our

         11  mobile unit that we established really about 200

         12  feet from here at the corner of Barclay and

         13  Broadway.

         14                 When we learned of the problem in

         15  November of 2001 of day laborers not only having

         16  problem collecting wages but also health and safety

         17  conditions that were really reprehensible. We

         18  decided to rent a mobile unit and establish it

         19  within a block or two of ground zero and offer free

         20  occupational health examinations. We did that with

         21  the Latin American Workers Project and NYCOSH, as

         22  you've heard. We actually didn't know whether we

         23  would be able to reach people. We didn't know what

         24  kind of response we would get.

         25                 I remember the meeting that we had,
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          2  lining up ten workers for the first day so that we

          3  would have somebody. Well in fact, when we opened

          4  the door, thanks to tremendous press, we had 100

          5  people show up the first day and within a few days

          6  we had over 400 people sing up for a free

          7  occupational health evaluation. We saw people over

          8  the ensuing five weeks or so. What we found we

          9  people who were sick. They had respiratory problems

         10  and also headaches, insomnia and other kinds of

         11  problems that ground zero workers had. I want to

         12  point out that these were not ground zero workers.

         13  These were the workers who were cleaning the

         14  skyscrapers around ground zero. These are people who

         15  were a step away from ground zero but working with

         16  great amounts of dust and suffering as a result of

         17  it. We also found out that people were working under

         18  very poor conditions. They had by and large no

         19  respirators. If they had respirators they weren't

         20  given filters. They weren't educated about the kind

         21  of work they were supposed to do and how to protect

         22  themselves. By and large people did not have health

         23  insurance and most of them hadn't seen a physician

         24  for their health problems that they suffered as a

         25  result of exposure to this dust.
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          2                 Last Summer, we called back and tried

          3  to reach as many of the people as we could of those

          4  we saw earlier to see how many were still sick. We

          5  reached a third of the group and most of them still

          6  had symptoms. We realized that this was an enormous

          7  problem and if you figure this is the way that day

          8  laborers were treated around ground zero then in the

          9  day to day work that they do, both before September

         10  11th and after that the problem of exposure and

         11  unprotected exposure and health and safety risks

         12  must be at least as bad.

         13                 Furthermore, if you look at the

         14  statistics, which I'll read very briefly about, it

         15  shows that the situation of the problem really is

         16  much larger than what we were able to document. Two

         17  thirds of job related deaths in New York City occur

         18  among immigrant workers. Two out of every three

         19  deaths in New York City that occur on the job are

         20  among immigrant workers and immigrants are only a

         21  third of the population of New York City. So twice

         22  as many occur among immigrants as should occur. If

         23  you compare that to the US as a whole one out of

         24  every seven work related deaths is among immigrant

         25  workers. So far and away, New York City has a
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          2  problem that is disproportionate to the rest of the

          3  country and the rest of the state.

          4                 Let me just use my existing time to

          5  describe what we would like to do because we have a

          6  practical proposal. Together with the Health and

          7  Hospitals Corporation and with NYCOSH and eventually

          8  with community based organizations, we think taking

          9  a mobile unit out to where day laborers are is a

         10  good way of reaching people and offering free

         11  occupational health examinations. We're trying to

         12  find the funding to get a mobile unit and bring it

         13  to the hiring spots, bring it to the quarters such

         14  as the garment district or other areas where

         15  immigrant workers are working in concentration, to

         16  bring it to neighborhoods, Jackson Heights and other

         17  neighborhoods where immigrant workers are

         18  concentrated and setting up on street corners and

         19  offering free occupational health evaluations.

         20                 This will obviously benefit

         21  individuals who get the care but there's another

         22  aspect that's important. We'll be able to document

         23  the kind of work conditions that immigrant workers

         24  are working under because we'll see groups of

         25  workers from a given industry or a given work site
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          2  and we'll be able to describe their working

          3  conditions in clear, objective detail and then make

          4  this problem more visible.

          5            It will also increase through this mobile

          6  unit the capacity of community based organizations

          7  to deal with occupational health and safety

          8  problems. They can deal with immigration problem to

          9  some extent and to some extent legal problems but by

         10  and large not so much the health and safety issues.

         11  We can, through this means enhance their ability to

         12  deal with those problems as well. We'll also try to

         13  integrate people once we screen them in to HHC

         14  (Health and Hospitals Corporation) they get ongoing

         15  care.

         16                 We think this will be a successful

         17  way to increase the visibility of the problem.

         18  Attract the kind of attention that is needed and

         19  ultimately prevent and reduce occupational injuries

         20  and illnesses among immigrant workers. Our hope is

         21  to do this on a pilot basis (we don't have any

         22  funding) for six months. Show that it works and them

         23  seek additional funding from whatever sources are

         24  interested. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you.
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          2  Before I ask my colleagues to read their questions,

          3  I have a simple question. A lot of the contractors

          4  who may end up with problems, they tend to have a

          5  frequency of changing names and then it's a problem

          6  of tracking them. What is the Attorney General doing

          7  about it?

          8                 MR. HIGGINS:  Thank is an extremely

          9  difficult problem. There are times when we just

         10  cannot find them. We do run them through  the

         11  computer databases that we have access to. We also

         12  address that problem in our education programs.

         13  We've urged day laborers to give names of witnesses

         14  and license plate numbers of vehicles and last names

         15  for individuals involved. Often in the Hispanic

         16  community it's very uncomfortable for people to ask

         17  for last names so they will come to us and they'll

         18  say it was Eric and they'll give the name of a

         19  company that no longer exists. You're absolutely

         20  correct, this is a very difficult problem. We're

         21  also often dealing with employers who are on the

         22  very edge financially themselves. They may be going

         23  out of business for any number of reasons or

         24  relocating. It's a difficult problem. I think

         25  through the Secretary of States records and computer
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          2  databases, through commercial databases, we have

          3  been able to find some but certainly not all.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Mr. McGuire you

          5  said earlier in your testimony that the creation of

          6  hiring halls doesn't go far enough. Do you have some

          7  indication of anything we can do or do you have a

          8  way that you can come up with new legislation that

          9  you could work with us so that we can at least make

         10  this better?

         11                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Well it is a difficult

         12  situation obviously. You don't want to do anything

         13  to further damage the workers that are already

         14  exploited. You want to crack down on the bad

         15  contractors. There is actually a piece of

         16  legislation we're working on and hope to have

         17  introduced in the Council later this month. It

         18  would, unfortunately, only apply to Public Works

         19  Projects but it would require quality based

         20  selection for the New York City Public Works

         21  construction contracts. Part of that legislation is

         22  just exactly what you were speaking to the gentleman

         23  from the Attorney General's Office about, it would

         24  look at the principles of the company, the officers,

         25  the owners, and any company that they had been a
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          2  principle of over the last five years. If they show

          3  a pattern of being involved in these companies, they

          4  would be barred from bidding on Public Works

          5  construction projects in New York City.

          6                 The work is out there to be had. It's

          7  almost impossible for me to say this without it

          8  sounding self- serving but you want to get rid of

          9  the bad contractors. We take everybody into the

         10  Union. They're doing the work, we take them in, we

         11  do not track documentation as far as citizenship or

         12  anything along those lines. It's not in our purview

         13  to do. We don't do it. You do construction work, you

         14  come into our Union. It's the bad contractors that

         15  we have to eliminate. You eliminate the bad

         16  contractors, the work still has to be done. It will

         17  be done by the good contractors. The day laborers

         18  will go work for the good contractors and they'll be

         19  brought into the unions. Then they will get the

         20  protection. Like I say, the hiring hall's are good

         21  but the resources are limited. We spend $3 million a

         22  year on training, we spend $1 million a year on

         23  legal services, we have a substance abuse program,

         24  millions and millions of dollars are spent on the

         25  membership every year to make their lives better and
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          2  to make things easier for them. Like I said, if the

          3  hiring halls could do it and we could find the

          4  funding, that would be great but with a $6 billion

          5  deficit here and $10 billion upstate and the climate

          6  the way it is in Washington as far as federal money

          7  coming to New York City, I don't think it's going to

          8  happen.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Well now my

         10  Chair is here. I'll just hand it over to the Chair

         11  again.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

         13  Council Member and Chair Stewart. I would like to

         14  call on Council Member Gioia.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you Mr.

         16  Chair. Mr. McGuire, you have pretty much answered my

         17  question in your testimony just now. I'll just say

         18  that one of the reasons we have this hearing is to

         19  shine a light on something that has not had a light

         20  shined upon it before and to hear these statistics.

         21                 It is so shocking what Dr. Ward(sic)

         22  what you testified to. Mr. McGuire, I think you had

         23  in your testimony what people say, "Well, we don't

         24  need labor unions in this century or in this time."

         25  These tails that we hear from these workers are so
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          2  reprehensible and they so shock the conscience that

          3  it seems like something you would hear in the

          4  Triangle Shirt Waste(phonetic) Factory at the turn

          5  of the last century. I guess my question for you and

          6  I know we'll be talking in the coming weeks, in the

          7  past this issue has been dealt with on a cosmetic

          8  level. In my previous questions I was trying to find

          9  the deeper problems that we don't see with this.

         10  What suggestions do any of you have to this body for

         11  next steps? If you feel you have any additional

         12  thing to what you've already testified.

         13                 MR. MARKOWITZ:  I think it would be

         14  useful to get the attention of the Department of

         15  Health, specifically Immigrant Occupational Health.

         16  They have a new capacity in Occupational Health

         17  which has never been an emphasis of the Health

         18  Department before. But they have hired a physician

         19  to be in charge of the unit in Occupational Health

         20  and Environmental Epidemiology. I think some

         21  suggestion to them that Immigrant Occupational

         22  Health might be one of their priorities would be

         23  very useful.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Do you have a

         25  question? Okay, I have one but let me yield to
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          2  Council Member Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Just

          4  following up on that Dr. The question is not just

          5  here but in general. Once you work with the

          6  individuals in the van and obviously it's the best

          7  possible solution according to your testimony.

          8  That's how it usually is... To make a referral and

          9  to work with HHC. But sometimes that's difficult for

         10  the individual for a whole series of reasons. How do

         11  you try to affect that referral? Obviously it's not

         12  just the immigrant community. It's a general

         13  problem. How do you work on it?

         14                 MR. MARKOWITZ:  It is a problem. When

         15  we set up our unit down town it was really on very

         16  short notice and we did refer people to Bellevue and

         17  to Mount Sinai, which are the two occupational

         18  health centers in New York. But I think many people

         19  did not show up there because of all the usual

         20  barriers. I think in our new work, working hand in

         21  hand with Health and Hospitals Corporation, with the

         22  local hospital in that neighborhood, whether it's

         23  Elmhurst or Bellevue or wherever, as well as the

         24  ambulatory units, we will have a much closer tie and

         25  really try to fit people in.
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          2                 Again, HHC was very interested in

          3  this and come to us to help them with this project.

          4  I think it's possible, because they see it as a way

          5  of reaching a group that they really haven't

          6  successfully reached. It their obligation to do

          7  that. I think that if we tie in closely with them

          8  throughout, it should work better. But of course,

          9  it's in the context of problems within health care.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         11                 MS. TILLEY:  I would just like to add

         12  to that. I think this is a place where the community

         13  based organizations are going to play a key role

         14  because they are the ones that are going to be able

         15  to develop the long term relationships with the

         16  workers and build a trust so that workers will fell

         17  comfortable in going to, whether it's a hospital or

         18  an occupational health clinic, and some

         19  organizations are starting to do that and figure out

         20  ways to get workers to go in groups with somebody

         21  who will translate for them and provide support so

         22  that they really feel safe in going. Otherwise, they

         23  are not going to go.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Before I ask a

         25  question I just want to apologize to the panel. I
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          2  missed their formal presentations but I do have a

          3  question for Mr. McGuire. I have speed read your

          4  testimony and taken in its meaning. I want to ask

          5  the flip of Council Member Stewart's question

          6  because it seems to me that what we're hearing today

          7  is a broad consensus that the current state of

          8  affairs is unacceptable. We heard something hopeful

          9  with the model down in Bensonhurst. We hear

         10  something hopeful with the efforts to outreach in

         11  terms of health care and legal services, etc. But I

         12  agree with you, a more holistic solution, a deeper

         13  solution is to unionize the workers. So my question

         14  is not what legislation should we be introducing to

         15  move that along. My question is the flip, what's in

         16  the way now? Are there legal legislative barriers?

         17  Are there structural barriers? Are there problems

         18  with the ways that any of the organizations that are

         19  trying to work on this issue regard the labor

         20  movement What's stopping the labor movement besides

         21  just shear resources from reaching as many of these

         22  workers as possible?

         23                 MR. MCGUIRE:  It's basically the type

         24  of contractors who are hiring day laborers. They are

         25  not reputable contractors for the most part. You are
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          2  all familiar with Lou Colletti(phonetic) who heads

          3  the Building Trades Employers Association. There

          4  are, I believe, 1,100 contractors in the BTEA. We

          5  have independent contractor with another 1,600. I

          6  think. So we have contracts with almost 3,000

          7  contractors. On occasion we will come across one of

          8  our contractors using day laborers and when we do,

          9  we make every move to bring these folks into the

         10  union. But it's more the fly- by night contractors,

         11  again there's no way to say it without sounding self

         12  serving, but you have to crack down on these

         13  contractors. How do we do it? We can do it as far

         14  and legislation as far as Public Works construction

         15  contracts. As far as private contracts, it's not

         16  that easy to do in that respect aside from cranking

         17  up enforcement. The Attorney General's Office has

         18  been doing very good work on it. The Comptroller's

         19  Office does a lot of work on it but aside from that

         20  that's about as good as we can hope for.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  One follow

         22  up... To the extent that efforts have been made,

         23  like the one in Bensonhurst, do you find that when

         24  the Union comes to work with the workers or

         25  introduce them to the Union movement or hopefully in
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          2  not too long a period of time, these workers would

          3  be in a circumstance with more reputable employers

          4  and the union members. Do you find the welcome

          5  atmosphere when you talk to workers about their

          6  rights and what they should be looking for?

          7                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Generally, on first

          8  contact, no. Again, it's just like one of the other

          9  folks up here was saying, it's a matter of trust. A

         10  lot of times contractor will tell workers who are

         11  undocumented to not talk to the Union because if you

         12  don't do what the Union tells you to do they are

         13  going to report you to the INS and you are going to

         14  get deported. Which, of course, is exactly the

         15  opposite. It's the contractor who will more likely

         16  report them than we will. It takes along time to

         17  build trust. We've done it in the past, five years

         18  ago when we first came in and took over at the Mason

         19  Tenders District Council. We reorganized the

         20  demolition industry which had been part of the

         21  laborers' work years ago and had fallen by the

         22  wayside. When we came in we had about a 3% market

         23  share in that industry. In that industry virtually

         24  all of the workers are Central and South American

         25  recent immigrants. We undertook and organizing
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          2  campaign where we took to market share into 90% and

          3  it took a long time to gain the trust of the

          4  workers. It was going out on the streets with them.

          5  Being out there doing house calls. Going to their

          6  homes where often there were 4 or 6 or 8 folks

          7  living in one apartment. Talking to the and

          8  explaining to them. Hiring some of those folks to be

          9  organizers with our organization so that they would

         10  know that there was somebody of their own people who

         11  was there representing them. It takes a lot of work

         12  and we certainly have always tried to do it. We

         13  continue to try to do it but it's a long and slow

         14  process.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I appreciate

         16  that and I'd just like to say for us all to think

         17  about going forward. If there is anything that we

         18  can do to assist, not just the growth of the job

         19  centers but intensifying the services available so

         20  that training or information about the worker's

         21  rights is provided actually by union representatives

         22  so that there is additional trust built and the

         23  workers have a more natural path to the labor

         24  movement because they are gaining some valuable

         25  opportunities right from the beginning given by the
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          2  labor unions. That might be a nice way to cross some

          3  of these positive efforts and have a mutual benefit.

          4  If we can help in any way with that I'd like to

          5  offer that.

          6                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Well, we would

          7  certainly welcome you to facilitate meetings between

          8  us and the workers rights groups that exist

          9  currently. We will certainly participate.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I'm sure my

         11  co- Chair would agree and we would be happy to

         12  facilitate that. Council Member Sears, I think you

         13  had a question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         15  It's good to see you again Mr. McGuire. I'm going to

         16  ask my question. I hope it's not opening up a

         17  Pandora's Box but I somehow would be remiss if I

         18  didn't ask the question. If I understand the

         19  immigration law, it's against the federal law to

         20  provide any kind of benefits or anything for

         21  undocumented people. At the same time, we are

         22  looking and doing everything we can for human

         23  decency to make life better. It seems to me that the

         24  contractors that you are talking about know that

         25  somehow they can use the law if they had to. Even
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          2  taking into consideration the Fair Labor Act. So

          3  we're surrounded by a myriad of conflicts and

          4  dichotomies. It's just a crazy scene. It seems that

          5  we have to start striping away a few layers so that

          6  we can at least provide, in the right way, and

          7  reduce. I'm looking at a picture here where the

          8  workers are negotiating with a contractor in a car.

          9  I mean, you know that this worker is not going to

         10  get what exactly he should be getting and he's lucky

         11  if he gets his pay.

         12                 At the same time, we're almost, by

         13  our laws, a buffer for creating these horrendous

         14  situations. I have to pose it to Mr. Higgins. I

         15  mentioned earlier that I was looking through a book

         16  concerning day laborers from way back. This issue

         17  has gone on in this city, this state and this

         18  country for a thousand years. It hasn't gotten any

         19  better. It's gotten worse because we don't have open

         20  fields. We have got more concrete than anything

         21  else. Agriculture and manufacturing has gone out of

         22  this city. So where on Earth, how do we help? The

         23  unions can do so much on their training areas and I

         24  happen to agree the job center areas are extremely

         25  limited. We need to start somewhere, either by
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          2  pulling in the three levels of government and

          3  looking at this issue very honestly and in reality

          4  to begin to make an inroad into what we are doing.

          5  The Health and Hospital Cooperation doesn't follow

          6  such things. They are providing health care to

          7  whoever comes the their door, which is commendable.

          8  There's a lot that is faced with that. Maybe you can

          9  just lead us through a way that will start this so

         10  that we can do it properly.

         11                 MR. HIGGINS:  I'm not sure how to do

         12  it properly but I did want to be sure to say that

         13  Attorney General Spitzer has taken the position that

         14  New York State labor law applies to all workers in

         15  New York State regardless of their immigration

         16  status. This area was muddied by the Hoffman

         17  Plastics case that Mr. McGuire mentioned but the

         18  Attorney General has examined that and has

         19  determined that despite Hoffman Plastics, the state

         20  law protections still do apply and we are enforcing

         21  state law regardless of the immigration status. I

         22  think what is going to happen in the federal law

         23  arena and what is going to happen in the immigration

         24  law arena is something that I really do not know.

         25  Hoffman Plastics is a very new case. There has been
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          2  very little development of it. It's going to take

          3  some courageous people to stand up and litigate

          4  these issues.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Exactly but it

          6  is heartwarming that our Attorney General has taken

          7  the position he has. That is a big first step. Thank

          8  you. Thank you Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

         10  Council Member. I'd like to thank the panel. You

         11  have been very, very helpful. Thank you for your

         12  patience today and we look forward to working

         13  together. We have two panels left. Let me call the

         14  first, Oscar Paredes and with him Pedro Pelico

         15  Martinez and Marlon Velazco. Welcome and Mr.

         16  Paredes, I would like to ask your help. Actually, I

         17  have never met Mr. Paredes, that's you. Mr. Paredes,

         18  you have been very patient because of the time

         19  situation, I'd like to ask if you could summarize on

         20  behalf of the witnesses or if there's a need for

         21  translation could be keep it very, very brief.

         22  Unfortunately, it's been a long hearing so we prefer

         23  a summary.

         24                 Oh, I'm sorry. Unfortunately I have

         25  to step out again for a meeting. My Co- Chair
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          2  Stewart is going to continue the hearing.

          3                 MR. LASIA(phonetic):  Hi, my name is

          4  Alex Lasia from the Latin American Workers Project.

          5  I'm just going to be reading the testimony made by

          6  Mr. Marlon Velazco.

          7                 For twenty days I was working with

          8  Mr. Johnson as a construction helper. In the first

          9  week he paid me $70 a day. After that he offered to

         10  pay me my salary ever week according to the hours

         11  that I was working. The work was not finished for

         12  the holidays in December and for the last three days

         13  of work he did not pay me the $230.

         14                 He told me the first week of January

         15  he was going to make a phone call to my house to pay

         16  me. He never called me. After eight days, he said he

         17  was going to pay me. I went to his house to remind

         18  him of my salary. He told me again the same story

         19  that we told me before, that he was going to pay me.

         20  Eight days later, I went to his restaurant. When he

         21  come outside the restaurant in a very aggressive

         22  tone, he told me that he does not want to see me

         23  anymore and he isn't going to pay me for the work

         24  that I did.

         25                 I went to the Job Center and I

                                                            97

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND IMMIGRATION

          2  explained my situation to the coordinator. We went

          3  together to the restaurant to ask for my salary. He

          4  argued that I did bad work and for that reason he

          5  never paid me. At this time the coordinator of the

          6  committee negotiate and explained to him that he had

          7  a contract and if we made a legal case of that he

          8  would lose more money than the amount he had to pay

          9  me. He decided that now he was going to pay me.

         10                 As a part of the day laborer

         11  organization, I have more guarantees than before on

         12  the street on 18th Avenue. I lost more than $4000 on

         13  18th Avenue when contractors picked me up from the

         14  street and I did not know where I was going to work.

         15  Also, I never had the names of the contractors or

         16  the telephone numbers or the addresses of the

         17  companies. In many cases, the contractor left me

         18  working all day and they never came back. I walked

         19  in unfamiliar neighborhoods asking for money from

         20  people on the street to take the bus back home. A

         21  couple of times when I finished my work and I asked

         22  for my salary, the contractor tried to hit me with a

         23  piece of wood. He pushed me out of the work place.

         24  That is the situation on the street. This is my

         25  story and I hear similar and more difficult stories
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          2  from other day laborers.

          3                 The difference in the Latin American

          4  Workers Project and the job centers is that the

          5  contractors have to sign an agreement with name,

          6  address and telephone number and also the amount

          7  they have to pay. When we started we set a salary

          8  for a helper of $70 plus lunch for eight hours. Now

          9  we receive $80 for the eight hours. As a member of

         10  the job committee. I feel more secure and have more

         11  benefits now. I realize how important it is to be

         12  organized and to make changes and improve our living

         13  standard for our families and also for the

         14  community.

         15                 MR. HERNANDEZ(translated):  My name

         16  is Carlos Hernandez. I am a worker who had a small

         17  problem. I came for help and to bring forth the

         18  situation. The contractor which I worked for has

         19  still not paid me up to this date. Today I come here

         20  to ask for help not only for myself but o behalf of

         21  all of the other day laborers who find themselves in

         22  similar situations. I thank you for permitting us to

         23  express our problems as workers. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  You are

         25  welcome. Is there anyone else?
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          2                 MR. MARTINEZ(translated):  Good

          3  afternoon. My name is Pedro Pelico Martinez and I'm

          4  from Guatemala. I come representing the workers from

          5  Bay Parkway. My first thing is to give thanks to the

          6  organizers of the day centers for giving me this

          7  chance. I feel more organized and more secure for

          8  the work done to get these contractors to sign the

          9  papers. When I first came here two years ago, I

         10  would be standing on the corners waiting for a job.

         11  We would all just huddle into a car without having

         12  any idea where we were going. It was that the first

         13  person to get into the car was the first person to

         14  work. We did not know what type of job we would be

         15  doing. Without even knowing how much he was going to

         16  pay us. This is where they took advantage to pay us

         17  whatever they thought and even not pay us at all.

         18  They think there's no one there to back us up so

         19  they take advantage of us and discriminate against

         20  us. Now that we are at the center, they come and

         21  sign these forms and can no longer take advantage of

         22  us. We also go with more responsibility because just

         23  as they signed the contract, so do we so we have to

         24  uphold what we agreed to. Although now we are

         25  getting paid better wages they can no longer take
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          2  advantage of us and pay us wages that are unlivable.

          3  The problem we have is that not all of the worker

          4  some into the centers. They still stand on the

          5  corners and wait for contractor to pick them up.

          6  Because of this, the contractors know that there are

          7  people waiting on the corners and they won't come to

          8  the centers anymore. They pick up the ones on the

          9  corner.

         10                 I hope that somehow a law con be

         11  passed to make it illegal to stand on the corners

         12  and wait for a job. That way these contractors can

         13  come to the work sites and pick up the workers

         14  there. That way we can have equal treatment. If all

         15  do their work then the contractors will have to come

         16  to the job center and no longer will be able to

         17  violate our rights on the street corners.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Alright. Could

         19  you ask him to sum up please.

         20                 MR. LASIA(phonetic):  He's done.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  He's done?

         22  Alright. Thank you.

         23                 MR. PEREZ:  Good afternoon everybody.

         24  My name is Oscar Perez. I am the Executive Director

         25  of the Latin American Workers Project. I'm
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          2  Ecuadorian. We are a grassroots organization of

          3  Latino workers working to improve our standard of

          4  living and change the conditions that make us

          5  vulnerable in this country. We have organized three

          6  job centers for day laborers in Brooklyn.

          7                 Day laborers are immigrants who stand

          8  on the street and wait to be picked up for a job to

          9  earn a living and sustain their families here and in

         10  their home country. We organized day laborers

         11  because they experience some very bad and dangerous

         12  conditions on the street. They have no protections

         13  in the work place. Also, they are a negative focus

         14  for some parts of the community in terms of quality

         15  of life. Day laborers are modern slaves and many

         16  people prefer for them to be invisible.

         17                 After September 11th, there are more

         18  day laborers on the street. Many people who work in

         19  the factories or in the services jobs in downtown

         20  Manhattan have been forced to become day laborers in

         21  order to survive.

         22                 Organizing day laborers is a big

         23  commitment because the community and politicians and

         24  different community institutions have to be part of

         25  this process. To organize day laborers is to
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          2  organize the community. First, we have to educate

          3  the community about day laborers- who they are and

          4  what they do- and about the benefits that the

          5  community receives from the day laborers. We also

          6  educate the day laborers about the benefits they

          7  receive from the community.

          8                 The day laborers are the people who

          9  make our community beautiful. They do landscaping in

         10  the parks and on houses. They clean windows on

         11  building and build building too. Low income home

         12  owners can benefit from inexpensive help to fix

         13  bathrooms, kitchens, plaster walls, and so on.

         14                 To organize day laborers, first, we

         15  listen to their problems and make the part of the

         16  solutions. We create a facilitated space for them to

         17  become leaders in solving their own problems.

         18  Education is one of the most important aspects of

         19  organizing day laborers as well as respect and

         20  understanding of their language and their culture.

         21  We make them feel like human beings because they are

         22  human beings. We have to work daily, full time with

         23  the day laborers on the corners, talking and having

         24  meetings, creating strategies to make changes and

         25  respecting their decisions about how they want to be
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          2  organized.

          3                 The benefits of being organized are

          4  first, to have a secure indoor space, shelter from

          5  weather, bathrooms and space for learning. We offer

          6  classes on leadership skills, vocational skills,

          7  English language, and literacy in Spanish. Community

          8  organizations can also offer their services at the

          9  job center. For example, health care, food pantries,

         10  peer support groups and education about HIV, AIDS,

         11  alcoholism, labor and immigration laws, health and

         12  safety on the job and OSHA regulations.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Excuse me.

         14  Could you just sum up because it's been a long day

         15  and we have one or two more people? Could you just

         16  sum up please?

         17                 MR. PAREDES:  Okay, I'm already

         18  finished. We ask for officials to help and to be

         19  part of this campaign to organize day laborers and

         20  organize job centers in New York City because we are

         21  part of the National Day Laborer Network. So we have

         22  a lot of experience in that and we know we can do a

         23  lot if the different institutions in the community

         24  become part of it. We ask religious groups, elected

         25  officials and other community organization to be
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          2  part. One of the big problems we face is that there

          3  are no laws to protect day laborers. Other problems

          4  we have a re documentation. We have a lot of workers

          5  who have many different skills in their own

          6  countries. They con not have a contractor's license

          7  here because they don't have documents.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you.

          9  Council Member Gale Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Very quickly,

         11  thank you. You might have heard earlier that we have

         12  a bill that's pending regarding domestic workers and

         13  we are working with the Administration. It's moving

         14  to do what basically you are doing. It would state

         15  to the domestic workers, the employer would sign,

         16  the agency would sign and the employee would sign.

         17  It would say, these are my duties and I'm not going

         18  to do anything else. Because as you know, in the

         19  home, the employee is often forced to do things that

         20  is not part of any contract. My question to you is,

         21  we're having some challenges. We want the contract

         22  to be signed, like you do. We want it to be signed

         23  by the employee, the employer and the agency. I want

         24  to know, and we're having some challenges from the

         25  Administration who are very willing to work on a
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          2  contract and I'm going to bring your contract to

          3  them as a model. I think there is some feeling that

          4  it doesn't need to be signed. I feel it does need to

          5  be signed. I'm just wondering how you go about with

          6  the signature process with the contractor and does

          7  the employee sign also?

          8                 MR. PAREDES:  The first person who

          9  signs is the contractor and the workers. Also in the

         10  contract is the ID number of each worker. They are

         11  members and they have a member ID. With this

         12  contract the benefit is for the contractor and

         13  mostly for the workers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And you sign

         15  that at the beginning of the day or is it a weekly

         16  thing?

         17                 MR. PAREDES:  At the time they hire

         18  the worker.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

         20  you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  Thank you. I

         22  would like to thank you all for your testimony. We

         23  in the City Council are going to do all we can to

         24  protect these day laborers. You can be assure that

         25  we will be working with other agencies and folks to
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          2  make sure that your rights are protected.

          3                 MR. PAREDES:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  For the next

          5  panel we have Laura Farrell and Joseph Conway. I

          6  want to thank you folks for your patience. You are

          7  our last and final panel and if you don't mind we

          8  would like you to introduce yourself and we take it

          9  from there. Thank you.

         10                 MS. FARRELL:  My name is Laura

         11  Farrell and I'm a citizen. I live on Staten Island

         12  and I'm just here as a private citizen.

         13                 MR. CONWAY:  My name is Joseph

         14  Conway. I'm Chairman of Community Board Two in

         15  Queens for Sunnyside, Woodside, Long Island City and

         16  part of Nesbeth(phonetic).

         17                 MS. FARRELL:  I just have a couple of

         18  questions. Aside from the obvious humanitarian

         19  issues and the quality of life issues. I want to

         20  talk a little bit about the tax and financial

         21  issues. The hiring halls were spoken about as an

         22  alternative. My question is contractors. Are the

         23  people that work, and obviously I know the answer to

         24  this but it's just a dichotomy to me but I can't put

         25  it together with what I know to be working
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          2  conditions, I9s, W2s, being able to pay the

          3  appropriate taxes. You mentioned that a lot of these

          4  people are paid in cash. But when you are paid in

          5  cash then how are the appropriate taxes paid? Also,

          6  it was mentioned about accidents and I also had

          7  looked up an accident that happened in Staten Island

          8  in May 2001 where a building collapsed and they were

          9  burned and Rescue 5 had to come in. Part of the

         10  issue, I believe, is that accidents happen when

         11  people aren't properly trained. So her testimony

         12  that there are cases where people will say, "Well,

         13  when you have these meeting halls there are certain

         14  skills."  How do you assess these skills? Someone

         15  say they have a skill. They're a plumber, or they

         16  know a little about electrical work. Well, knowing a

         17  little bit about electrical work is not enough to

         18  put in electrical wiring. Basically my main

         19  questions and concerns are the tax issues, the W2

         20  issue, the Workmen's Compensation, FICA, all those

         21  things when people are paying cash. How do you

         22  reconcile that with the fact that there are

         23  immigration and naturalization issues?

         24                 MR. CONWAY:  Thank you. First of all,

         25  I'd like to thank Council Member Sears for bringing

                                                            108

          1  GENERAL WELFARE AND IMMIGRATION

          2  this to the Council. She made a promise las year and

          3  you delivered. So thank you very much.

          4                 This is a problem that we view in out

          5  community as a social problem because these are

          6  people not looking for a hand out. They are looking

          7  for a decent job and wage. What we're viewing is

          8  this increasing number of day laborers which is

          9  probably a direct result of the economy and the down

         10  turn in the building trades. How do you solve this

         11  problem? It's a complex issue because you have a

         12  cash society. You have people who are undocumented.

         13  You have no documentation for peoples. So how do you

         14  go about creating a system where the city supports

         15  this type of environment? How do you go to the

         16  federal government and even say how do you support

         17  it? But we view it as not an issue we can turn our

         18  back on. We have to look at it and say how do we

         19  move forward on this?

         20                 We appreciate the Council going

         21  forward on the item to say that it is a social

         22  problem, not unlike the homeless that we've had to

         23  suffer and watch for years and say how do we address

         24  that social problem. So when you look at the

         25  dynamics about it, these are people who are here.
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          2  Not only have they come to this country but now

          3  their children are born in this country. Again, I

          4  emphasize that they are not looking for a hand out.

          5  They are looking for an honest opportunity and a

          6  decent way to do it. We would look for the Council

          7  to provide guidance and even some funding that you

          8  could go back to social groups and say, "Take on

          9  this project..." Like you heard about the Latino Day

         10  Worker Projects and others that would be able to

         11  have the resources to go out on the street, to go to

         12  educate people, to tell them what the laws are and

         13  also to respect the laws that are here.

         14                 I'll just give you a quick story. The

         15  hearing that Council Member Sears called for in our

         16  community... I had asked a Latino woman to come with

         17  me to help with the translation, if we had a

         18  problem. As we drove along into Jackson Heights, the

         19  first comment was, "Well, what's the big deal?

         20  What's everybody complaining about Latino day

         21  workers?" As we got closer it was like, "Oh my God,

         22  lock the doors. Look at all these guys on the

         23  streets." That's exactly what the perception is.

         24  People have a fear to walk down street in our

         25  community. They also see a direct correlation to
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          2  litter on the streets, public urination, drinking

          3  and that's where it becomes a social problem.

          4                 We look to the Council, we look to

          5  the City to say that they need to take this problem

          6  on. They need to do something about this complex

          7  issue and about how we're going to solve it. We

          8  believe the bast was to do it is to have some

          9  community involvement.

         10  I'll give you a quick example. There was a problem

         11  in Miami with Haitians and the number of Haitians

         12  that had immigrated to Miami. The Haitian community

         13  had almost a similar problem with people hanging out

         14  on the street corners looking for jobs. What do you

         15  do? How do you solve the problem? They instituted

         16  something with the police department and they had

         17  almost a "Haitian Academy" where they went out and

         18  educated people on the streets about their rights,

         19  what the laws are, what you should do, how you

         20  become a citizen, how you look towards the

         21  legalization end... That you are an active

         22  participating member of our society. As a side

         23  benefit of this program, crime was reduced in the

         24  Haitian community by 75%. A very simple process that

         25  did not cost a lot of money.
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          2                 Finally, I'll just leave you with

          3  this thought. When Council Member Sears was talking

          4  about this before, to say that this has been going

          5  on for 1,000 years, I can tell you that as a third

          6  generation Irishman, I can remember stories in my

          7  family where family members, my grandfather had to

          8  go down to the docks and duke it out for a job. The

          9  last man standing was the guy that was hired. In

         10  this case, it's not the last man standing on the

         11  street corner that's hired, the last man standing

         12  there is the guy that's unemployed. We'd like to see

         13  him get off the streets and to find employment.

         14                 Thank you very much for bringing this

         15  to the Council. We're grateful that the Council is

         16  taking this on and we look forward to your

         17  leadership and guidance on this issue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  I want to get

         19  to dwell a little e bit on the taxes because we know

         20  that there might be legislation in the federal

         21  government to try to help some of these workers. But

         22  at this stage, how can we make it easier for them to

         23  pay taxes for that registration, for that part of

         24  what has to be paid? How can we make it easier? As

         25  far as legalization is concerned (and that has to do
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          2  with the federal government) but as far as we are

          3  concerned here, we want to help these folks so that

          4  when that legislation with the federal government is

          5  passed (the bill by Representative Gebhardt) that

          6  means they would at least meet the requirement for

          7  the two years of working. As it is right now, I

          8  don't see it being feasible. How can we help them?

          9                 MR. CONWAY:  We have the issue, if

         10  you don't mind. As somebody that's paid off the

         11  books, paid in a cash society, how can you prove

         12  anything? You can prove that you are paying rent

         13  because you're paying rent to somebody who is

         14  accepting cash. You don't have a credit card or a

         15  bank statement. So if you had this temporary ID that

         16  the workers are looking for, that goes to the next

         17  step of documenting them as an illegal alien.

         18  They're not going to want to sign up for it because

         19  they are worried about getting deported. Then you go

         20  to a greater process that's in the United States and

         21  I think that's where you're going to have a problem

         22  with Senator Gebhardt's bill. It's an amnesty issue

         23  again. People, I would dare to say, are not full

         24  supportive of another wave of amnesty in this

         25  country.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  That number

          3  that is given out, the tax number that is being

          4  given out... Are these workers being educated to the

          5  extent that they know that they can pay taxes using

          6  that number that the city or the state will give to

          7  them?

          8                 MR. CONWAY:  I will tell you that in

          9  our community we found out that they do not have

         10  that information. That's why we are asking for some

         11  type of funding to get that out to the community. If

         12  they knew what some of the rules were, if they knew

         13  what some of the laws were, if they knew about a tax

         14  number, it would be helpful. That's what we have

         15  heard the biggest cry from. You've heard from the

         16  day workers but in talking to them on the street,

         17  because the don't have this information, because

         18  they don't understand the process, they are a

         19  victim, not only from the contractors but from gangs

         20  of their own kind that come in to rob them and they

         21  know they can't report the crime. That's the complex

         22  social issues there. We have an obligation as

         23  citizens to say, "How do we protect these people?"

         24                 MS. FARRELL:  My other question is,

         25  Reverend Troya(phonetic) did mention something about
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          2  taxes being withheld but it wasn't delineated what

          3  type of taxes. What is being withheld in the form of

          4  taxes?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  And is it

          6  really being withheld?

          7                 MS. FARRELL:  Right. Is it federal?

          8  Is it FICA?  She did mention that there are taxes

          9  but she really didn't delineate what type of tax.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  My colleague

         11  Council Member Sears.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I think that

         13  part of her reference was that they have no control

         14  over those contractors withholding monies that are

         15  supposedly going to the federal government when we

         16  can absolutely believe they probably won't. Of

         17  course not. So I think that the questions you raise

         18  are interesting because each side has its offenses.

         19  Because people are working and I think we heard

         20  earlier that they do want to contribute to taxes.

         21  They want to do that and the fact that it's a cash

         22  society, they can't wait and get a check so it's a

         23  day to day cash basis. They are there with a great

         24  deal of money. To me, it's such a myriad of

         25  unbelievable complexities. The concerns that you've
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          2  raised for community groups. They are difficult to

          3  find because this is an ongoing thing and it takes a

          4  lot of discipline and finding the sites to do it,

          5  the organizations, the manpower. But certainly it's

          6  something for us to look into, I think because I see

          7  it starting on a very small scale. I don't see this

          8  as being a gigantic leap into really trying to make

          9  a dent in this big problem.

         10                 MS. FARRELL:  You mentioned a cash

         11  society. A cash society by definition is an

         12  underground economy. It's not something that you

         13  talk about.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But it's a

         15  large one in New York City.

         16                 MS. FARRELL: But it's an underground

         17  economy. It's not something you speak about in my

         18  experience. "Off the books" is not open.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It's true but

         20  I think what we have heard, what is started and what

         21  is being done is actually more than I thought was

         22  being done so I thank you for this, Kendall

         23  (Stewart). It's been eye opening. But I hope that it

         24  certainly shows the offenses that have also been

         25  taking place and that we have to look at it as a
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          2  global picture. I think the Council can be effective

          3  in what we can do legislatively. The point about

          4  people not standing on corners. It's interesting

          5  that it was raised because we need to look at that.

          6  New York City does not have a loitering law and I

          7  don't think there's one in New York State. Maybe the

          8  lawyers have to dwell into this. The reason I think

          9  people stand on corners is because they know they

         10  are going to be the first ones to get chosen. So

         11  we're pitting worker against worker by a very

         12  undisciplined, very unstructured system. It really

         13  behooves us to begin to make those corrections.

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART:  With that in

         16  mind, I would like to thank my colleagues. I would

         17  like to thank you for staying this late and thank

         18  you for your testimony. This meeting is adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 4:10 p.m.)
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